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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 to our
shareholders and investors.

The macro-economic environments have been volatile due to a
series of global events. These has led to a weakened business
confidence and the businesses have tighten their budget on
marketing and advertisement expenses. The Group will remain
resilient and is cautiously optimistic of our business.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our Directors, our dedicated management and staff for
their wavering support and commitment. We would also like to
express our gratitude for the continuing support and trust of our
shareholders, business partners, readers and customers. We
hope to join hands with each other to achieve improvements and
delivery success continuously.

Lui Man Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$20,841,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024,
representing a decrease of approximately 12% from approximately
HK$23,550,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
Group recorded total gross profit of approximately HK$9,198,000
for the year ended 31 December 2024, representing an increase
of approximately 44% from approximately HK$6,375,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s loss attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$19,791,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024 compared
to the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$73,721,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023. Loss per share of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 was approximately HK28.48 cents. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (i) exhibition and trade show
business and related services; (i) publications and advertising
business including print and online advertising, sales of
publications, advertising and related production services and
outdoor advertising; (i) online sales of beauty and cosmetics
products; and (iv) sales of luxury products.

Publications and Advertising Business

During the year, the Group owned and published six publications,
including Exmoo News, Travel Macao, Motoz Trader, Motoz
Trader (Free), Shopping Monthly (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine),
and Shopping Monthly (Free) (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The publications of the Group cover readership of different
market segments and age groups by focusing on different areas
of interests in lifestyle, including automotive, beauty and fashion,
property, dining and electronic products.

o Exmoo News is a Chinese-language daily newspaper
(published every Monday to Friday) published in Macau
which has a wide range of readership by covering different
areas including Macau daily local news as well as Hong
Kong, the PRC and international news, finance and
economy, entertainment, sports, fashion and lifestyle,
cultural knowledge, etc.. As at the date of this annual report,
the distribution points of Exmoo News in Macau covering
commercial buildings, luxury apartments, banks, airport
and lounge, ports, petrol kiosk, food centre, car parks,
universities and governmental offices, etc. and Exmoo News
is one of the publications with highest circulation and widest
coverage in Macau.

° Travel Macao is a Chinese-language travel leisure fortnightly
magazine (published alternate Friday) published in Macau
which provides comprehensive information to readers
relating to travel, dining, shopping, culture and entertainment
in Macau. It is distributed in major terminals in Hong Kong
and Macau as well as certain hotels in Macau. In addition
to the printed magazine distributed in Macau and Hong
Kong, Travel Macau also provides website version, digital
social media platforms such as Facebook page and WeChat
platform to readers.

° Motoz Trader is a fortnightly magazine that focuses on new
car models, second-hand car market and properties while
also provides lifestyle information including dinning, fashion
and beauty.

° Motoz Trader (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Motoz Trader.

° Shopping Monthly is a fortnightly magazine and focuses on
updated information on consumer products.

° Shopping Monthly (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Shopping Monthly.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue generated
from the publications and advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$13,207,000, increased from approximately
HK$9,109,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Exhibition and Trade Show Business and Related
Services

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no revenue generated
from the exhibition and trade show business and related services
compared with approximately HK$Nil for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Online Sales of Beauty and Cosmetics Products

The Group has been diversifying its revenue stream by acquiring
a company specified in online sales of beauty and cosmetics
products on 1 April 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue generated
from online sales of beauty and cosmetic products amounted
to approximately HK$684,000 decreased from approximately
HK$11,321,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Sales of Luxury Products

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue generated
from sales of luxury products amounted to approximately
HK$6,950,000 increased from approximately HK$3,120,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2025, the Group will pay close attention to
the uncertainties in the economic environment, and stay alert to
formulate strategies to pursue steady development and strive for
generous returns to our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Total revenue decreased by approximately 12% from
approximately HK$23,550,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 to approximately HK$20,841,000 for the year ended 31
December 2024. It was mainly due to the reduced demand of
beauty and cosmetics products. The revenue generated from
beauty and cosmetics products decreased to approximately
HK$684,000 as compared with approximately HK$11,321,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

No revenue of the Group contributed from the exhibition and
trade show business and related services for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Gross Profit

Total gross profit increased by approximately 44% from
approximately HK$6,375,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 to approximately HK$9,198,000 for the year ended 31
December 2024. The increase in the gross profit was mainly due
to the increase of revenue of publications and advertising business
and outdoor advertising business as this segment involved more
indirect cost.

Other Income

Other income increased by approximately HK$485,000 from
approximately HK$154,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 to approximately HK$639,000 for the year ended 31
December 2024. The increase was mainly attributable to the
government grants HK$629,000 related to incentive subsidy
for technology modernisation by the Government Information
Bureaus of the Macau SAR respectively, while no such subsidies
granted in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Other (Losses) or Gains, Net

Other losses is recorded approximately HK$905,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2024, compared with the other gains of
approximately HK$56,802,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into a Subcontracting Agreement (“Subcontracting Agreement”)
with a contracting party (“Prime Contractor”) whereby certain
advertising spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities
are subcontracted to Tiance Cultural Communication Limited
(“Tiance Cultural”), a subsidiary of the Group pursuant to which
the Prime Contractor would subcontract the right of usage of the
advertisement spaces of billboards in Macau and Zhuhai, namely
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau-Bridge Macau Section Passenger
Clearance Building to Tiance Cultural for a term of 65 months from
1 January 2020 to 31 May 2025 with monthly Subcontracting
Fee of HK$1,500,000 (“Monthly Service Fee”) pay to the Prime
Contractor in conducting its publication and advertising business.

With effective from 30 April 2023, Tiance Cultural and the Prime
Contractor agreed to terminate the Subcontracting Agreement
with immediate effect. Whereby, the Prime Contractor reserves
the right to receive from Tiance Cultural, and Tiance Cultural is
obliged to pay the Prime Contractor the Monthly Subcontracting
Fee for the remaining term of the Subcontracting Agreement
which Tiance Cultural was unfulfilled. As a result, a provision
of approximately HK$37,489,000 was made, with reference
to the Monthly Subcontracting Fee and remaining term of the
Subcontracting Agreement which Tiance Cultural is required
to fulfill. In additional, the deposit paid of approximately
HK$10,480,000 was forfeited and contract cost of HK$6,000,000
was written off under the terms of the Subcontracting Agreement.

Operating Expenses

The operating expenses of the Group increased by approximately
3% from approximately HK$11,360,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately HK$11,688,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,803,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024, compared
to approximately HK$1,198,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income Tax

No income tax expense for the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024, compared to approximately HKS$NIl for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the Company
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s
loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$19,791,000.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2024. The share capital of
the Company only comprises ordinary shares.
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Current ratio VLB S 0.4 0.5

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2024 was
approximately 0.4 times as compared to approximately 0.5 times
as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$9,590,000 (2023: approximately
HK$3,552,000).

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings over

shareholders’ fund, was approximately 7% as at 31 December
2024 (2023: 29%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The carrying amount of trade receivables decreased from
approximately HK$25,436,000 (net of expected credit losses of
HK$15,770,000) to HK$8,598,000 (net of expected credit losses
of HK$31,578,000) for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the trade receivable turnover days decreased from approximately
217 days for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
151 days for the year ended 31 December 2024. All outstanding
trade receivable balances are reviewed by the Group’s sales
and marketing department on a monthly basis to ensure that
any overdue receivable is promptly monitored and appropriate
collection actions are taken.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluation of the financial conditions
of its clients. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant capital commitments as at 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability (2023: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not
have other significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material pledge of
assets.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the employee headcount (not including
Directors) of the Group was 12 (2023: 13) and the total staff
costs, including Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2024, amounted to approximately HK$5,330,000
(2023: approximately HK$7,158,000).

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice. In order to attract and
retain valuable employees, the Group reviews the performance
of its employees annually and such review results will be taken
into account while having the annual salary review and promotion
appraisal. In addition to a basic salary, bonuses would be paid
to staff with reference to the financial performance of the Group.
The Group would also provide trainings or seminars relating to
publication business and offer options that may be granted to
the employees under the share option scheme. The Group pays
commission to its sales and marketing staff which is calculated
based on an agreed percentage of sharing specified in their
respective contracts in accordance of the total monthly sales
solicited by such staff which is arrived at mutual agreement
between the Company and the respective staff.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material event affecting the Group need to be reported
to the Shareholders that has occurred after the financial year
ended 31 December 2024 up to the date of this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Man Wah, aged 43, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Group on 16 October 2019 and re-designed as
executive Director of the Group since 4 April 2023. Mr. Lui was
the executive director of Imperium Financial Group Limited (a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
8029) from August 2013 to September 2023. Mr. Lui obtained
a Bachelor of Arts degree in business studies from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2004 and obtained a Master of
Commerce degree from Macquarie University in 2005. Mr. Lui has
over 10 years of experience in securities and financial institutions.
He is experienced in managing listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, aged 44, was appointed as executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Hung has over
10 years of experience in media and advertisement industries.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Journalism and
Communication from Chu Hai University in 2005.

Mr. Hung was appointed as a deputy managing director of Macau
Federal Commercial Association of Convention & Exhibition
Industry in September 2019 until 2021. He served as a media
production director of Central — Companhia de Comunicacao
International, LDA, a company incorporated in Macau, which
is principally engaged in media, advertisement and exhibition
business from April 2019 to September 2019. He served as a
business development director of Pentalker Studio Publication
Co., Ltd., which is a book publisher providing cultural and travel
information in Macau from July 2016 to April 2019. He also
served as a deputy editor-in-chief of “NEW GEN. Monthly” of New
Generation Culture Association from June 2017 to July 2018. He
was also an editor in chief of Central International Communication
Co, Ltd, which is principally engaged in media, advertisement
and exhibition business from June 2011 to July 2016. Mr.
Hung served as an editor of Wide Connection Limited (being a
subsidiary of New Media Group Holdings Limited, now known
as Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 708), which was principally
engaged in magazine publishing, from April 2010 to June 2011.
He also served as an editor in chief of Prefix Publication Limited,
which is a book publisher providing travel, leisure, lifestyle and
cultural information in Hong Kong from March 2009 to April 2010.

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

=
HITES

BXELRE - 4355 0 R2019F10H16HEZ T
BAREBZIERITEENRB2023F4 A48 B
EARNEBRITES - BLER2013F8A=E
2023 F9 A M EImREemERBR AT (R
BRFTGEM M2 A7) » BRIBHRER - 8029) 2
TEE - BEAR2004FERMEFHEIAZY
PEEBNELEN - WHR2005FEFEBIEKR
BYREBELTSN - BLERBF RS BEE
BHBI10FLR - FREBEES LM ARAE

@ EA Ll =
KEEE -

BERABREE - 445%  A2019F10H16HEZ T
RBAKBEZHITES - RAEENBEERESTT
EHmEBI0FLER - HN2005F BHKG LM E
SHE R EEEXELEA o

AR AER2019F 0 AR T ARFISREEM S
BEEIREER - THE2021F I ° HHR2019F
AR E2019F 9 A X ERREREAR AR (—
KR EMR AR MIEERELE
ZAREBNEEE  BEERREER - FR
2016F7 A E2019F4 A ETAEERHRER A
AIMEBRBME  ZRRARMAEEL
MR - R SUE RIREEE A o IR 2017466 A
E2018F 7 AEEHAERBTF UL g HRAICH
ARYAFIBEIER © BIFR2011F6 A E20164F
7TRAEEFRERBEEERARMNER - ZA 7
FTENEHE  EERREFES - R2010F48
E2011F6H @ RAAEGBETERBRAR(A
FEEEEERER G (REAEBRERESE
EEERRF) (—KBXFEMARF - BRHAK
% 708)WIMIB AR WAREE - Z ARIEERS
bR o R IFR200943 A £2010F4 A #&(T
WAXAEERARINEIS  ZARB—ZRES
EFE MR - REKREE - KE - EERXUEE
e
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Mr. Wong Yuk, aged 54, obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1996. He was admitted as a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January 2004
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in August 2005. Since December 2019, Mr. Wong
has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Hygieia Group Limited, a cleaning service provider listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1650), where he has been
primarily responsible for providing independent opinion and
judgement to the board of directors. Since August 2022, Mr.
Wong has been serving as an executive director of Tian Cheng
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2110) (formerly known as Yue Kan
Holding Limited), Mr. Wong is primarily be responsible for financial
management and assisting to manage the day-to-day business
operations.

From November 2019 to March 2024, Mr. Wong was a company
secretary of XXF Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 2473).
From May 2017 to February 2019, Mr. Wong was a senior
consultant of Huanian Xinxing Chanye Jituan Company Limited*
(FEFFHEEZEEBER A A, nvolved in project management
and financial consultation services. From May 2015 to January
2017, Mr. Wong was the company secretary of Success Dragon
International Holdings Limited (5 3 B R = IR B R 2 7)), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1182), which was principally engaged in the provision
of management services for electronic gaming equipment.
Between December 2010 and June 2012, Mr. Wong was the
chief financial officer and company secretary of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (3& X #° B % & & PR A &), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2789),
where he was primarily responsible for financing and investor
relations affairs. From November 2006 to November 2010, Mr.
Wong was the chief financial officer and company secretary of
China Qilfield Technology Services Group Limited, a company
listed on the mainboard of the Singapore Stock Exchange (stock
code: COFT), which was principally engaged in the business of
enhanced oil recovery (EOR) technology and sales of oil extraction
equipment. Mr. Wong started his career in KPMG Hong Kong in
September 1996 and left the firm as a senior accountant in April
1999. Mr. Wong also worked in various financial and accounting
related roles for a number of Hong Kong listed companies from
October 1999 to October 2005 both in Hong Kong and the PRC,
including subsidiaries of the Swire Group, Hong Kong and China
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EEEEFT

Gas Company Limited and Lung Kee Metal Ltd., respectively. Mr.
Wong has extensive practical experience in corporate governance
and business exposure across industry sectors in automobile,
construction, electronic gaming equipment, investment and
financial consultation, IT solution, manufacturing, oil and gas,
public utilities and professional audit.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 16 October 2019.
Ms. Wong possesses over 25 years of experience in finance,
accounting and company secretarial services experience in Hong
Kong. She obtained a master degree of arts in parent education
and a professional diploma in guidance and counselling from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a postgraduate diploma in
early childhood education from The Hong Kong Baptist University
and a bachelor degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong is currently the group financial controller of RNP
Jewelry Design Limited, which engages in the trading and
manufacturing of jewelry products, since March 2015. Ms. Wong
is responsible for corporate accounting, finance and corporate
secretarial matters. Ms. Wong worked in H.C. Wong & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), responsible for providing
corporate secretarial services from August 2007 to March 2015,
with her last positions as senior manager. She served as an
accounting officer Il of the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region from April 1997 to May 2007. She also
served as an accounting manager of Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from September 1996 to April 1997 and a staff
accountant at Ernst & Young from August 1994 to August 1996.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Zexin, aged 39, has been studying for a Ph.D. in Applied
Finance at the University of Malaya since 2020. He is currently
a doctoral candidate. From 2013 to 2015, he obtained an MBA
degree in Finance from the City University of Hong Kong and,
as an exchange student, studied Innovative Entrepreneurship
Management at the University of California, Berkeley. Mr. Lin was
one of the first to obtain the level two certificate of the Shenzhen-
Hongkong-Macau FinTech Professional Program. He also holds
FRM and AFP certificates, as well as the Certification of Fund
Professional. He took the special training courses (Innovation
and Technology in Finance Course and the Financial Technology
Course) provided by the 2022 Shenzhen Financial Key Talent
Training Program series, with his group papers winning the first
prize and the third prize respectively. He also participated in the
Hong Kong “Thousand Young Key Talent Training Program”
organized by the Liaison Office of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China, the All-China Youth Federation and
the Central Party School. From 2020 to 2022, Mr. Lin founded the
companies Shenzhen Boshi International Technology Education
Co., Ltd* (RINELERBE R E B R & £ 2 7)) and Wangi
Jinxin Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (&R & ERIE(RINE
R & /2 F]). Since 2019, he has served as a research assistant
for Professor Ma Xufei of Tsinghua University and participated in
research on listed companies and management case studies as
well as publication.

In addition, Mr. Lin is a committee member (the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region) of the All China Youth Federation,
the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Quality Talent Association,
a director of the International Teochew Youth Federation, and a
member of the Youth Committee of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce Ltd.. Mr. Lin has extensive professional
knowledge and experience in the fields of finance and corporate
management.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
Report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

*

For identification purpose only

ESEREHE

MIBELEE  395% ' 2020FE 2S5 R E K KE
BEEA:RSEL  BABLEERA  H#R
2013E2015F R EBM T AL ES S BIMBAZ
i » WAIEERMMNREBRERFDORIBRES
BIFTEIEEE - MALERFERE MBIy
B2 IFEA ~ FRMEEZEA « AFPIFE A » Wi
BESHEERES WA T2022F FIH
CREHAT BB R EETHE I —BLA
TR N & BEHRIE (NMEGR X D R R E—F 5
H=5%4)  URPEH - 2BEFH  PRER
BB TREFTEBREIETE] - M4k
720202 20224 HifS Al # R IS - BIBR BHE
EBEREMTAR  BEREERBECRINERE
ERFIEE 2019F =25 RIEFEREFER
HIRWAERYIE  2EFMOEFAREERR
plEsE - WHRTY -

AN MELEREEETHEREZE - BHBES
AT HERIERE  BRAETEE  BEHMNE
SEFLERZE - EoMBACEERERY -
MEEEELEENEXABMER

ESENEE

KARDNFHWEH ABERATRBEESE LR
B BRARESEHAEIN  BMEEENER
HE ABRIBRGEM LR B 2817 .50A(1) 6 T LA

E’go

* S

“TONFEFR EREEGZER)ERAT

17



18

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risk and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in
Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report respectively. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s business
operation made continuous effort on minimizing damage to
the environment and ensuring employees’ well-being. No non-
compliance in relation to environmental and social aspects was
recorded. Engagement with stakeholders has resulted in raised
concerns on key material issues, which include (i) employee health
and safety, (i) labour standards, (iii) intellectual property (“IP”)
rights, (iv) customer data protection and (v) anti-corruption. These
aspects had already been managed by the Group and the Group
will continue to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for advancing its environmental, social and governance
management.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
and the state of affairs of the Group covering the same period
are set out in the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 164 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to the shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESHE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 26% of the total sales for the year ended 31
December 2023 and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 12%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 80%
of the total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 24%.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company
or any subsidiary of such ultimate holding company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)
(re-designed from independent non-executive director
on 4 April 2023)

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin

Mr. Wong Yuk

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Lin Zexin

Ms. Liu Xiaomin (appointed on 12 March 2024 and
resigned on 13 January 2025)

Mr. Lee Man Yeung (resigned on 12 March 2024)

In accordance with Article 84(1), three directors will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) and, all of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out
on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company under which their term of
appointment is three years.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in section “Share
Option Scheme” in this report and Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there is no
other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies except for the acquisition of 50.1% of the issued share
capital of Yantic Limited on 1 April 2023, the details of which was
disclosed in Note 39 of the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management,
having regard to market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible participants,
details of the scheme is set out in section “Share Option
Scheme” in this report and Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 February 2015. The Share Option Scheme
expired on 16 February 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective close
associates has any business or interest that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(A) Interest in Shares of the Company
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percentage of
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Interest Capital of
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Mr. Lui Man Wah Interests in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 34,330 (L) 0.04%
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Notes:

1. Mr. Lui Man Wah is the ultimate beneficial owner of these Shares,
of which Shares is directly held by Source Creation International
Limited (“Source Creation”). The entire issued share capital of
Source Creation are wholly owned by Mr. Lui Man Wah.

2. Duplication occurs in respect of the interests held by Mr. Lui
Man Wah and Source Creation which they represented the same
block of Shares.

3. As at 31 December 2024, the Company has 87,091,200 Shares
in issue.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.
(B) Interests in Share Options of the Company

Details of the particulars of interests (all being personal
interests) in share options held during the year ended
31 December 2024 by Directors (and/or their respective
associate(s)) to subscribe for Shares of the Company
granted/exercisable under the share option scheme of
the Company are disclosed in the section “Share Option
Scheme” of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors nor chief executives had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or were otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The Directors are not aware of any other persons who had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, as at 31 December 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any connected
transaction which is subject to the disclosure requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date
of this Annual Report, there was sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period
have been audited by Global Link CPA Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution to re-appoint
Global Link CPA Limited and to authorize the Directors to fix their
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LUI MAN WAH
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices in order to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the Company
has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Codes”) contained in Appendix C1 to
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company had been in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and the CG Codes as set out in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing
Rules, except for the provision detailed below:

GEM Listing Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28

GEM Listing Rule 5.05(1) stipulates that the board of directors of
an issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. GEM Listing Rule 5.28 stipulates that the audit
committee must comprise a minimum of three members. Since
the resignation of Ms. Liu Xiaomin (“Ms. Liu”) on 13 January 2025,
the GEM Listing Rule 5.05(1) and 5.28 are not complied.

Code Provision C.2.1

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same person. The Company currently
has no CEO. All duties of CEO are shared among the executive
Directors, the Board believes that the present arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors.
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TEERRE

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Directors, and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the
responsibility for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board has delegated the daily operation
and day-to-day management of the Group as well as the
implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Director and management of the Group.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions objectively
and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at
all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”) as named below. An updated list of the
Directors identifying their roles and functions is posted on GEM'’s
website and the Company’s website from time to time.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin
Mr. Wong Yuk

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Lin Zexin

Ms. Liu Xiaomin (appointed on 12 March 2024 and
resigned on 13 January 2025)

Mr. Lee Man Yeung (resigned on 12 March 2024)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” section of this Annual Report.
There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships) among members of the
Board.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
Ms. Wong Chi Ling has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. The Board
provides the Group with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and the Board maintains
high standard of compliance with financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements as well as provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) between members of the
Board.
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CEEARE

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and delegated
to management or Board committees. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Group to management while reserving
certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval and monitoring
of the Group’s overall strategies, policies and business plans;
and overseeing and evaluating the performance of the Group. It
is also responsible for promoting the success of the Group and
its businesses by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.
Board committees for specific functions are also set up to ensure
efficient Board operations. The composition and functions of
each Board committee and their major roles and functions are
described below. The final decision still rests with the Board
unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of the
relevant committees.

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in Code Provision
A.5.6 of the CG Codes, the Company has adopted diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its approach to
achieve diversity on the Board, and a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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CREARE

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS EESNEBNLHEBR -
The following table shows Directors’ attendance at Board, FXRE/RESHEREZE2024512731 8 L8
committees and shareholders meetings held in the financial year HEERITHNEEFEREZESGSHANMBEKX
ended 31 December 2024: 2B
Corporate
Governance
and Risk
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management General
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting
bE¥ER
ARER

E3e EBUZBE REZEE  FMZEE ZRE LEUN |

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Lui Man Wah BXELE 1010 NATER 212 212 17 12
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RREREE 1010 NATER NANER NANER N/ANER 12
Mr. Wong Yuk Thaxs 1010 NATER  NANER O NANER  NAMER 2/2

Independent Non-executive ~ BV FEHTES

Directors
Ms. Wong Chi Ling BTRUT 10/10 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lin Zexin WEELE 1010 3/3 2/2 2/2 11 2/2
Ms. Liu Xiaomin" 2 gl 99 3/3 11 17 11 2/2
Mr. Lee Man Yeung®? FXFRED 17 NATNER  NATER  NAMER  NATER  NATER
Notes: BRE -

(1) Ms. Liu Xiaomin was appointed as an independent non-executive (1)  BIBESZ +12024F3 12 B EZ T AR BB
director of the Company on 12 March 2024 and resigned on 13 IERITE R W 202591 A13H BT ©
January 2025.

(2)  Mr. Lee Man Yeung resigned as an independent non-executive director  (2) ¥ AER2024F3 A 12 B BHEA R A& IEH
of the Company on 12 March 2024. TES -
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SREARE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company held an
annual general meeting (the “AGM”) on 27 June 2024, all Directors
have attended the AGM. The Company held an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) on 10 December 2024, Ms. Wong
Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Yuk, Mr. Lin Zexin and Ms. Liu Xiaomin
attended the EGM by electronic means and other Directors were
unable to attend due to other business commitments.

The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
that included executive Directors, non-executive Director and
INED presented in person or through electronic means of
communication regularly at least four time every year. During
regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Group, monitored financial
performances and reviewed the financial results, as well as
discussed and decided on other significant matters. The Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required.

Generally, notice of at least fourteen days should be given for a
Company’s regular Board meeting. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given. The Directors will receive the
agenda and accompanying documents tabled at the meeting
before regular Board meetings and will be given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for discussion from the Board
meetings, Board committees met on other occasions during
which matter relating to their respective terms of reference was
discussed. The Board committee members would receive notice,
agenda and documents to be tabled for consideration in advance
of each meeting in accordance with the CG Codes and respective
terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

The executive Director has entered into an executive Director’s
service agreement with the Company and each of the non-
executive Director and INEDs has entered into a letter of
appointment with specific terms with the Company with an initial
term of three years, subject to renewal by the Company. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association.
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Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at the meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the INEDs remain
independent.

DIRECTORS’ PARTICIPATION IN CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL TRAININGS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors will be arranged
and reading material on relevant topics will be issued to directors.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in

REE2024F12A31HILFE » EF0ESTMN
THEBSESERRERALETOEEATIR
EZLTRAIZEEZAG B MBEHEZ

compliance with the requirement of the CG Codes on continuous &3
professional development:
Corporate Governance/
updates on Laws,
Rules & Regulations
EERBIEE -
RAIRER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lui Man Wah AXERE v
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RRRfESTAE v
Mr. Wong Yuk Fra%E v
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Ms. Wong Chi Ling BRIt v
Mr. Lin Zexin WESEE v
Ms. Liu Xiaomin Ell7 g v
Mr. Lee Man Yeung BXERAE v
BOARD COMMITTEE EEZ8T

The Board has established the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and corporate governance & risk management committee (“CGRM
Committee”) for overseeing various particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs.

All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
such Board committees are available on GEM’s website and the
Company’s website. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resource to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The lists of the chairman and members of each Board committee
are set out in “Board Composition”.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph D.3
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to
the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted. As at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprises two INEDs, namely
Ms. Wong Chi Ling (Chairlady) and Mr. Lin Zexin have appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, three meetings of
the Audit Committee were held by the committee to review the
interim and the annual results. The principal responsibilities of the
Audit Committee include reviewing of the financial results of the
Group, the accounting principles, the scope of non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its independence, and be
responsible for all the matters relating to the continuing connected
transaction of the Company. The Audit Committee endorsed the
accounting treatments adopted by the Group and, to the best
of its ability assured itself that the disclosures of the financial
information in the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports
comply with the applicable accounting standards and the GEM
Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
January 2015 pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph E1 of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the
GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Lin Zexin (Chairman),
Mr. Lui Man Wah and Ms. Wong Chi Ling.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management; reviewing their remuneration packages, approving
the management’s proposal of remuneration packages by
reference to corporate goals, objectives and market practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the structure and
policy of remuneration of the Group and approve the remuneration
package of Directors. The emoluments of the Directors are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee according to the
Directors’ respective responsibilities, individual performance and
prevailing market conditions.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.3 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man
Wah (Chairman), Ms. Wong Chi Ling and Mr. Lin Zexin.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, the
Board Diversity Policy, the Policy for the nomination of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on nomination, rotation
and re-appointment of Directors, and assessing the independence
of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size,
composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors’
nomination related matters, make recommendations to the Board
on the proposal of reappointment of Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The attendance records of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting held during the year are set out in
Directors’ Attendance at Meetings section above.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
criteria for selection and process of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the nomination policy, in assessing and selecting
a candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be considered
including but not limited to the following:

- Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience;

- Commitment to attending the meetings and participating in
relevant training and other board associated activities;

- Requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. ldentify and evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the proposal of
appointment or re-appointment of Director; and

2. Recommend the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
as a Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in terms of sKills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge,
culture, age and gender. The main objective of the policy is to
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth. In
accordance with the board diversity policy, a truly diverse Board
will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional
and industry experience, background, race, gender and other
qualities of the Directors. These differences will be considered
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while considering diversity
(including gender diversity).
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Corporate Governance and Risk Management
Committee

The Company established the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee (the “CGRM Committee”) Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference. The Corporate
Governance Committee was renamed as Corporate Governance
& Risk Management Committee on 6 January 2016 to add in risk
management functions. As at the date of this annual report, the
CGRM Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman), Ms.
Wong Chi Ling and Mr. Lin Zexin.

The primary functions of the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee include, among others, reviewing and
making recommendation to the Board in respect of the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with any requirement, direction and
regulation that may be prescribed by the Board, contained in
any constitutional documents of the Group, or imposed by the
GEM Listing Rules, other applicable laws, regulations, rules and
codes, and ensuring that appropriate monitoring systems are
in place to ensure compliance with the relevant internal control
systems, processes and policies, oversee the effectiveness
of the procedures of the internal control system of the Group,
monitoring the implementation of the Group’s plan to maintain
high compliance with own risk management standards, providing
guideline to the management on risk management and to set
up procedures to identify, assessing and managing material risk
factors, and ensuring the management discharge its responsibility
in establishing an effective risk management system.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, one meeting of the
CGRM Committee was held to review the Group’s corporate
governance practice and oversee of the Company’s compliance
with the CG codes, to review and discuss about the internal
control procedures and finding of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering and reviewing
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor, Global Link CPA Limited, in respect of the audit and
non-audit services are as follows:

TEERWE

HE2024F12A31HIEFE » WBEZKRIEEX
RSB,/ BN ZEEsaEestaMaR AR
BRI

2024
20245
HK$’000
FHET

B IR

Audit services

1,000

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5, the remuneration of the
member(s) of senior management of the Group (excluding the
Directors of the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2024
by band is as follows:

BREEE M

BRI STRHESCEEEA 51K - REBE ZE20245F12
AS1BIFFEREEZ»MNaREREAS (K
NEEERINBE BT ¢

Number of

individual(s)

Remuneration i AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 2

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board and the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
committee of the Company are acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Policies have been designed for
monitoring the regulations and laws compliance of the Company
and to advise on the risks involved in major decisions that need to
be reviews by the Board and solutions to the major risks.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are implemented.
The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group. The
Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee of the
Company provides independent review on effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and gives
their recommendation to the Board. The Board is responsible
for reviewing the internal audit report and approving policies and
procedures designed by the management.
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The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defence, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defence is effective. As the final
line of defence, the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
Committee of the Company, ensures that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.

Risk Management
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca same as
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk which
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

In currant year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings.

The Group does not expect any significant interest rate risk which
materially affect the Group’s results of operations in 2024 and
2023.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.
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In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting period,
the Group has concentration of credit risk as 32% (2023: 31%)
of the total trade receivables of the Company was due from
the largest customer and 71% (2023: 76%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group was due from the largest 5 customers.
Taking into accounts the creditworthiness of the customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of bad debts, the
directors consider that such concentration of credit risk would not
result in significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Board, through the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2024 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance functions, is of the
view that the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are considered as effective and
adequate.
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Internal Audit

The Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such department
as and when it thinks necessary.

Inside Information

The Group has adopted and implemented its own disclosure
policy aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and
senior management of the Company in handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure pursuant
to applicable laws and regulations in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).

The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
by publication of the announcement to the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on a timely basis to enable
the public to access the latest information of the Group, unless
such information fall within the safe harbours with the SFO.
The management has notified all employees to comply with the
disclosure policy. Briefing and training on the implementation of
the policy have been provided to Directors, officers and senior
management of the Group. The Board emphasizes that only the
authorised representatives registered in the Stock Exchange are
authorised to speak on behalf of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditor of the Group in relation
to their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO ADDRESS
RELEVANT DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and
“Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor’s
report contained on page 48 to 51 of the Annual Report, the
auditor of the Company, Global Link CPA Limited (“Auditor”), had
disclaimed their opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has taken actions to address the relevant audit
qualifications. Actions taken by the Company to address relevant
disclaimer of opinion in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
below:

Going Concern

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity and financial position of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group wiill
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the
liquidity position and to improve the Group’s financial position
which include, but are not limited to, the following:

()  The Group is negotiating with its subcontractor for
a favorable term in settling the Group’s obligation of
approximately HK$37,489,000 arose from early termination
of a subcontracting agreement;

(i)  The Group is negotiating with its lenders in seeking for
the extension of repayments of all borrowings, including
principals and interests in default; and

(i) The Group is actively negotiating with external parties to
obtain new sources of financing to finance the Group’s
working capital and improve the liquidity position.
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The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast of the Group for a period covered not less than twelve
months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements. Based on the cash flow forecast which has assumed
the successful implementation of the above measures, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group wiill
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the next twelve months from the date of
approval for the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group’s ability to generate adequate financing and operating cash
flows through the successful outcome of these measures.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate the value
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, and to provide for any further liabilities that
may arise. The effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion
relating to going concern, the management views on going
concern and the action plan of the Group, and concurs with the
Board’s view.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

Mr. Yu Ngai confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

Mr. Yu Ngai is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Group provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).

Right to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company, any one or more
member(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expense
incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public
counter at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.

Contact information of the Company is set out as follows:

Principle Office: Suite 913, 9/F, Chinachem Golden Plaza,
No. 77 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3643 0799

Facsimile: (852) 3622 1457

E-mail: info@wintogroup.hk

Company website: www.wintogroup.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders. The focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling the public as
well as the investors to make rational and informed decisions.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Company
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. The website of the Company also provides
email address, postal address, fax number and telephone
number by which Shareholders’ enquiries may be put to the
Company’s Board. Appropriate members of the Board and senior
management are ready to respond to enquiries from Shareholders
and investors on a timely basis.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditors are also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Shareholders approved the adoption of the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association, which came
into effect on 29 June 2023. The existing memorandum and
articles of association are published on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.
The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and relevant laws
and regulations. The Board shall take into account the factors,
including but not limited to:

Actual and expected financial performance;

Cash flow situation;

The Group’s business and operations; and

- Economic conditions and other factors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BB R &S

N\ Global Link
Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”),
set out on pages 52 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As explained in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$20,367,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2024, and as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$39,838,000
and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by HK$38,729,000.

These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position,
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due, which are set out in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends on the successful realisation
of these measures, to finance the working capital of the Group as
and when needed, which is subject to multiple uncertainties.

Due to the significance of the uncertainties relating to the ongoing
availability of finance to the Group, we disclaim our opinion in
respect of the material uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BB R &S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the

“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Global Link CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is CHENG, Tsz Chin.

Practising Certificate Number: PO8403

31 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REeEsEkAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BfsE FH&T FHT
Revenue ek 5 20,841 23,550
Cost of sales SHERCAR (11,643) (17,175)
Gross profit EH 9,198 6,375
Other income EmUA 7 639 154
Other losses HAhEsE 8 (905) (66,802)
Operating expenses K RY (11,688) (11,360)
Impairment loss recognised under the ~ TEHA(EEEEE R TR
expected credit loss model KB (EE1E (15,808) (11,830)
Finance costs BB AR 9 (1,803) (1,198)
Loss before tax bR RTEE 10 (20,367) (74,661)
Income tax FriS#i 11 - -
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZHEMXERE
expense for the year (20,367) (74,661)
Loss for the year EBIEFRESE :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company S YNCIEZZS PN (19,791) (73,721)
— Non-controlling interests — IEIE R R (576) (940)
(20,367) (74,661)
Total comprehensive expense for ELERAZHEHBEXAEE
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KATHEE A (19,791) (73,721)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRAE (576) (940)
(20,367) (74,661)
(Restated)
($&ES)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic (HK cents) —EARCEM) 14 (28.48) (123.7)
— Diluted (HK cents) —#5E (B(L) N/ATiE A N/A T~iE A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e P BIRRR

At 31 December 2024 72024512 31 H

2024 2023
202445 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M FHExT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B AR 16 779 1,043
Goodwill kS 17 - 905
Intangible assets mEEE 18 330 330
1,109 2,278
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 23 1,004 1,404
Trade, other receivables and other B 5 N B UGB &
deposits Hitniz & 20 15,374 32,309
Contract costs BRI 21 - 73
Amount due from a shareholder FEUR— R AR IR 29 1,379 1,379
Amount due from a non-controlling JE U —FEIR B 2 B FEHERR
shareholder of a subsidiary A& R FIE 29 30 30
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBR MRS 22 9,590 3,552
27,377 38,747
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFRIE 24 26,660 24,550
Provision s 26 37,489 37,489
Contract liabilities aHalE 25 1 8
Loan from a substantial shareholder FERREER 27 - 2,859
Other borrowings H A AR 28 2,800 5,800
Amount due to a director of a subsidiary FEft—BKIB AR EEHIE 29 265 3
67,215 70,709
Net current liabilities REBaEFEE (39,838) (31,962)
Net liabilities BERHE (38,729) (29,684)
—EOFFy BREEER)ERARA

——
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PRI R

At 31 December 2024 72202412 H31H

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BfsE FH&T FET
Capital and reserves ERRHEE

Share capital %N 30 17,419 12,442
Reserves e (53,567) (40,121)

Capital deficiency attributable to RATEE AELEZE 4
owners of the Company (36,148) (27,679)
Non-controlling interests FEPER R (2,581) (2,005)
Capital deficiency BEARE A (38,729) (29,684)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 163 were 2552 EH £ 163 B M4 A B TSR R MR 202443 A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 28 H&EEE S ERRETIE T RIATEEN

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: =E
Hung Yuen Kin Lui Man Wah
RERRE BXE
Director Director
= EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated ~ B&MI i T iRk 47 & BT 1S SRR BB EB 5 ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share Share Statutory
capital premium reserve

KRR AR Non-
Capital Accumulated controlling

reserve losses Sub-total interests  Total equity
FER

ks RtgE  ERR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AR AR TiEn

g5 RiER It Bt R4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TiEn TEn AR TiEn

(Note (a)) (Note (o))
(Mek@) (W)

At1 January 2023 R2023E151A 10,368 100,379 49 7,591 (86,498) 31,889 (169) 31,726
lssuance of new shares by~ MAEEAAB(THR

way of placing, net of MREATERA

issue costs (Note 30) (F£30) 2074 12079 - - - 14,153 - 14153
Acquisiton of asubsidiary ~ WE—RHEAF

(Note 39) (Rizk39) - - - = = - (902) (902)
Total comprehensive ERRERTEE

expenses for the year - - - - (78,721) (73,721) (940) (74,661)
At31 December 2023and  R2023%12A31AR

1 January 2024 202451717 o4 112458 % 7500 (160219 @TeTY  RO0§ (29684
lssuance of new shares by MAEREAAB(THR -

way of placing, net of MREATERA

issue costs (Note 30) (F3t30) 4977 6,345 - - - 11322 = 11322
Acquisition of asubsidiary  WE—FHEAF

(Note 39) (Hzk39) - - - - = - - =
Total comprehensive EREARRES

expenses for the year - - - - (19,791) (19,791) (576) (20,367
At31December2024  MA2024%12A31R 1749 18803 % 750 (180010 (G614 [RS8 (87
Notes: BaE

() In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial Code, the
Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Macau are required to transfer
a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits to a statutory reserve
until that reserve equals 50% of the nominal value of their capital. The
statutory reserve may not be distributed in the form of cash dividends
or otherwise, during the life of the company.

(o) Capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from a
substantial shareholder (note 27) arising from the loan from a substantial
shareholder. It is the difference between the imputed interest calculated
by the market interest rate at the loan inception date and the nominal
interest rate charged by the substantial shareholder.

@ IRBRFIEAREITTIE - ARFERM MK
# P B 7 B 28 S 4 J2 A M) B 4 26% B8 8 20K OE ok
B BEERHRBERNEAEENS0% - £RRFE
HE - AERBBIEURSRBEMT DK

b)) EBXREBEIZERREREENRIEEIERRT
B (K5E27) « DR ERRR BRTISH R E
RS B B 2 RRWER A E N R MR E
B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETTE
Loss before tax HiRIE 8 (20,367) (74,661)
Adjustments for: AR
Interest income FLBWA - )
Finance costs BhE R AR 1,803 1,198
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y% - BSWMNREITE 264 372
Amortisation of contract costs B KPR A 5 - 6,024
Provision BiE - 37,489
Impairment of goodwill [EESNEAE 905 1,399
Loss on debt modifications B EEEE - 1,434
Forfeiture of deposit paid RIWE SRS - 10,480
Impairment loss recognised under expected EHEEEBREATE
credit loss model ERARERE 15,808 11,830
Operating cash flows before movements in LEEFHANKERE
working capital nE (1,587) (4,437)
Decrease in inventories FER 400 955
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables B 5 & E b fE UG I8 [ A A
and other deposits memd,(3Em) 1,127 (3,068)
Decrease in contract costs B KR ANR 73 -
Increase in trade, other payables and accruals 25 - AN RIE R ERT
& FRE 2,110 2,268
Increase in amount due to a director of R —ENB AR ES 2 FIA
a subsidiary 3 262 3
Decrease in contract liabilities AHaERD (7) (849
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ICEERS,/ (FTA)RE 2,378 (5,128)
Interest received UG ERFI B, - 2
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating R EEE(FTA)RE
activities FEE 2,378 (5,126)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE - IWEEE - 4)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39) U g — IR B 2 71 (M97E39) - 1,735
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder of — FEIPfT B A R FEIE AR AR AR
a subsidiary REAEAR - 16
Net cash from investing activities RETEFESHRSTHE - 1,747
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest paid AR (1,803) (430)
Borrowing raised E£5ER - 3,000
Repayment of other borrowings EEHMER (3,000) (200)
Repayment of substantial shareholder loan EETERRER (2,859) (11,500)
Proceeds from issue of shares on placement, BT ER D IS RIA -
net of issue costs HIBRBEITRAS 11,322 14,153
Net cash from financing activities RMETESRSTHE 3,660 5,028
Net increase in cash and ReRREEEYEMFERE
cash equivalents 6,038 1,644
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MB1ENEERES
ZEY 3,552 1,908
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December M12A31EMEER
ReZEY 9,590 3,552
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREERSE 9,590 3,552
T OUFFY BEMEEEER)ERAT
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office, and
head office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report. Its ultimate and immediate parent is Source
Creation International Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liabilities and owned by
Mr. Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”). Mr. Lui is an executive director
and the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
provision of exhibition and trade show and related services,
publication and advertising and outdoor advertising.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (HK$), which is same as the functional currency
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 January 2024 as mentioned below. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”);
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and
prior years.
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,
that are expected to be relevant to the Group and have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised
HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures?®

Amendments to Amendments to the Classification
HKFRS 9 and Measurement of Financial
and HKFRS 7 Instruments?

Amendments to Contracts Referencing Nature-
HKFRS 9 dependent Electricity?
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to Lack of exchangeability!

HKAS 21

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRS
HKFRS Accounting  Accounting Standards — Volume
Standards 112

Amendments to Presentation of Financial Statements
Hong Kong — Classification by the Borrower
Interpretation 5 of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause?®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
4 Effective date not yet determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to HKFRSs will not have material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$20,367,000
for the year ended 31 December 2024, and as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$39,838,000 and its total liabilities exceeded its total
assets by HK$38,729,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of the circumstances and conditions mentioned
above, the directors have given careful consideration to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain measures have been taken by the Group
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial
position, which include, but not limited to, the following:

()  As detailed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is negotiating with its
contracting party (the “Prime Contractor”) for a
favorable term in settling the Group’s obligations
of approximately HK$37,489,000 arising from the
early termination of a subcontracting agreement
(“Subcontracting Agreement”);
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)  The Group is negotiating with its lenders in seeking
for the extension of repayments of its borrowings,
including principals and interests; and

(i)  The Group is actively negotiating with external parties
to obtain new sources of funding to finance the
Group’s working capital and improve the liquidity
position.

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast of the Group for a period covered not less than
twelve months from the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements. Based on the cash flow forecast which
has assumed the successful implementation of the above
measures, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the next
twelve months from the date of approval for the consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether management of the Company will be able
to achieve its plans and measures as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the Group’s ability to generate
adequate financing and operating cash flows through the
successful outcome of these measures.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively, and to
provide for any further liabilities that may arise. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUSs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
the gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group incurs costs to fulfill a contract in its exhibition
and trade show contracts. The Group first assesses whether
these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of
other relevant Standards, failing which it recognises an asset
for these costs only if they meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue from the following major sources. The Group’s
revenue recognition policies on each of these revenue
sources are as follows:

(i) Publications and advertising income

The Group generates advertising income from the
publications that are point and online media platform.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits when the advertisements are released
on the designated publications and online media
platform. Revenue from publications and advertising
recognised over time using the output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i) Publications and advertising income
(Continued)

The Group earns revenue from selling publications.
Revenue from sales of publications is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the
magazines.

The Group generates advertising design and related
production services to its customers. Revenue from
provision of advertising design and related production
service is recognised over a period of time using the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value to the
customer of the services transferred to date relative to
the remaining services promised under contract (i.e.
when the designated publications transferred to the
customers).

(i) Outdoor advertising income

The Group provides outdoor advertising spaces to
customers. The customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits when the advertisement is
displayed on the outdoor advertising spaces. Revenue
from outdoor advertising is recognised over time using
the output method.

The Group provides advertisement sourcing agency
services to its customers. Revenue from provision of
advertisement sourcing agency service is recognised
over a period of time under a straight-line method
and amortised over the period of the contract. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission on a net basis as an agent.

(iii) Exhibitions and trade show and related service
income

Revenue from provision of exhibitions and trade show
services is recognised over time using the output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(iv) Sales of luxury products

Revenue from sales of luxury products is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered and the customers
have inspected and accepted the products. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when the
customers purchase the goods and takes delivery in
store. A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the buyer as this represents
the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

(v) Online sales of beauty and cosmetics products

Revenue from the online sales of beauty and
cosmetics products is recognised at a point in time
when a product is delivered to the customer and the
Group receives sales and acceptance confirmations,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that affects the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when the
customer purchases the goods. Under the Group’s
standard contract terms, customers have a right of
return within 30 days. At the point of sale, a refund
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue
is recognised for those products expected to be
returned. At the same time, the Group has a right to
recover the product when customers exercise their
right of return so consequently recognises a right to
returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@@ The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exception to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the

lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EAREFHBXRERHA) -

INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE(#E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBESREA (B

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEBE(E)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted KRB BEE  HEaERFMEEENRE

by interest accretion and lease payments. ERRIEL A -

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a e TmEERe—  NEBEHHEE

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) BE#ETENGE(WHAREREEES

whenever: ITIEFEFAE) -

e  the lease term has changed or there is a change in o THEHBASMLIHTTFEEERERE
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in R EE AR EERT - £
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by EFAHE B ISR FBEIR R YERT
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised MM EN FEITRR EF T EAEN
discount rate at the date of reassessment. HEBE-

e the lease payments change due to changes in market o MHENFEMSHEEEERNTISME
rental rates following a market rent review, in which SERE(MBL - EHBERT - ﬁﬁﬁ
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by HIIERAIR R &S JE’PTEEH/TA
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial BRI REM T EMENHEERE

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item AEBRGEVBRARABHERRESR
on the consolidated statement of financial position. P REE % IHE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the lease payments
and related payments (including the initial direct costs),
and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge return over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of “exchange reserve” (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability for bonuses when there is

a contractual obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of relevant income
vests immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period, while the remaining portion vests in
accordance with the MPF Scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting
of the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.

Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group’s Macau subsidiaries are
covered by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit
would be determined and paid by the Macau government.
Contributions are generally made by both employees and
employers by paying a fixed amount on a monthly basis
to the Social Security Fund Contribution managed by the
Macau government.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
share-based payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of transaction does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to application
of the initial recognition exemption.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Advertising billboard 7 years
Leasehold improvements 33.33%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicle 20%
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

EXETTHEER (@)

Intangible assets (Continued) B EE(E)
Derecognition of intangible assets BB EARILER

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives and contract cost to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance with
applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for
assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the
extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for related goods or services less the costs which
relate directly to providing those goods or services that have
not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of
the CGU to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the RIEREB A EBEEHEENEERLTER
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the WmEHRERDI12EA - BRIERSERR
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. FHME-

Borrowing costs BEERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying assessment. Any specific borrowing that remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9, and

- the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without the
guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable
to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part
of the cost of the investment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRSY/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

U on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXRSTHERER@)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SET A (HE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEEN D ERAEZE(E)

assets (Continued)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI (i) FEERAEAFEFTAEMZEKER
BRATA

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI are BEAFEFAEMEERENRAT
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and BEMREHEBEATETE HAF
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in BEEHEENNE REERNEMEE
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the WRER MR AFEFAEMETE
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment W Rt - BEAERMBER -
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be RET U E B ER & R AR B R
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity TEFMHEEERD  UBEENZA
investments, and will continue to be held in the FVTOCI FEFAEMEARERESS -
reserve.
Dividends from these investments in equity instruments i A 55 (B fe 37 UK AR S O R F B - Bl
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right ZEMATERBEMNREN BT IE
to receive the dividends is established, unless the R BRIFFERERERKER D
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the TEKA - BIfERE® °

cost of the investment.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL (i) BAFEFABZNEREE
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being TG RBHEKASIZR AT EFT AR
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated fth 2 EUW RS IR AIR A FEFGT AR
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. thEERETEFRENESMEE - 8

ROV EARBSEAE -

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value EATEFABENEREEN SR
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value HEMRTEATEFE - EERATFE
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net Bl mEERNERFER - RNE
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any mPERN WS SERFETBER
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is T RVE ERBAEMRESKFE - I
included in the other gain and losses line item. FFAEM MG R EE—IE o
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on financial assets and contract assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, contract assets
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the end of the
reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables without
significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

U)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASBEER(E)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SET A (HE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

EHEEREAEERBIE(E)
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and qualitative information that is reasonable and EEHRIEMEER -

supportable, including historical experience and

forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into BEEmMs  FMAEERRESEEE

account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when (i) a trade receivable
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EARETBXRERHA)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SET A (HE)

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets TREERSAEERRE(E)

(Continued)

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) V) FrEREREHEEEIEE)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater MBI EEEER S A LTS
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument HEFRBRARMKESENTAEER
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments IR - @mTEESHRRREES
are grouped on the past-due status basis. 48 -

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management EERETHER ERE LME{%X
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to HARIRAEMKIE B #FBEUNEER
share similar credit risk characteristics. o

Interest income is calculated based on the gross FEWAZ R E ERREEBRET
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the B BRFEemEELREERE 8
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest FMEWMARERBEE E’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁi$d‘
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the Ho

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in REEFRARAAE SR T AMNKRE
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting BERERAERZE L AEANRERE
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and HE1E - HE SR GRIE R EWE R
loan receivables where the corresponding adjustment is RIFE BE B R ERERIE AR

recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognised its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognised the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

EXETTHEER (@)

Financial instruments (Continued) SET A (HE)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments THEERKRETA

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to a director of a subsidiary, loan from
a substantial shareholder and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises the financial liabilities when,

and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)

When the contractual terms of financial liability are modified
such that the revised terms would result in a substantial
modification from the original terms after considering
qualitative factors (e.g. modifications of convertible
instruments such as extending the tenure, change in
exercise price of the underlying options). When the
contractual terms of financial liability are modified such that
the revised terms would result in a substantial modification
from the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors, such
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liability derecognised and the fair value of consideration paid
or payable, including any liabilities assumed and derivative
components recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, at the point of modification,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities is
revised for directly attributable transaction costs and any
consideration paid to or received from the counterparty.
The effective interest rate is then adjusted to amortise the
difference between the revised carrying amount and the
expected cash flows over the life of the modified instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows presentation,
cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
is repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the
value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit, a suitable
discount rate, terminal rate and growth rates in
order to calculate the present value. Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed
in note 17.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was approximately nil
(2023: HK$905,000) after an impairment loss
of HK$905,000 (2023: HK$1,399,000) was
recognised during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

4,

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4.

(Continued)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

Provision of ECL for trade and other
receivables and other deposits

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for trade receivables and other deposits. The
provision rates are based on debtor’s aging as
groupings of various debtors with common credit
risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable, and that is available
without undue cost or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables that are credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually.

In respect of other receivables, the Group
assesses the expected credit losses individually
by estimation based on historical credit loss
experience, general economic conditions of the
relevant industry in which the debtors operate,
an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

The information about the Group’s trade and
other receivables and credit risk and impairment
assessment are disclosed in notes 20 and
34 respectively. As at 31 December 2024,
the carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and other receivables and other deposits,
was approximately HK$15,354,000 (2023;
HK$32,289,000), net of allowance for credit loss
of HK$31,578,000 (2023: HK$15,770,000).
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

(Continued)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(iij) Provision for contract obligation

When accounting for provision for claims on
contracts, the Group has taken internal and
external advice in considering known claims
and actions made by or against the Group. It
carefully assesses the likelihood of success
of a claim or actions. Provisions are made for
certain contracts, claims or actions against
the Group. Provision on possible obligations, if
appropriate, are made based on management’s
best estimates and judgements. The information
about the provision is disclosed in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements. As at
31 December 2024, the carrying amount of
provision was approximately HK$37,489,000
(2023: HK$37,489,000).

(b) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with above).

0]

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends upon the ongoing
availability of finance the working capital
requirements of the Group. Details are explained
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as
an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage
1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
as a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group as an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or services before that good or services is
transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

5. REVENUE 5. W& -
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REFEFEHNKZEMAD
customers
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FAT
Sales of luxury products HEE %M 6,950 3,120
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics B EHEERA Rt
products 684 11,321
Publications and advertising income T R EERA 13,207 8,592
Outdoor advertising income PONEEA - 517
20,841 23,550
Timing of revenue recognition Wit 225 i 5 B
A point in time IR 7,634 14,441
Overtime ¥ A ] 13,207 9,109
20,841 23,550
Transaction allocated to the remaining performance PTMEEFEHNZHRTEANEEIZRS

obligation for contract with customer

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph AEBEHBEBNBRELERFE15RE
121 of HKFRS 15 to all its sale contracts such that the 121RNERBEEFZEBEMAHEES
Group does not disclose information about revenue that B AEBM T EEEETRITHR TR
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining HEERHBEENG 2 WENER -

performance obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines in a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), being
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(1)  Exhibition and trade show business and related
services

(2) Publications and advertising business, including print
and online media advertising, sales of publications,
advertising and related production services and
outdoor advertising

(8) Online sales of beauty and cosmetics products
(commenced in 2023)

(4)  Sales of luxury products (commenced in 2023)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. K& (A)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as B E2024F £ 2023F 12 H31 B IEFE1R
provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource HYIREEERESAREEERDER
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the DERFF G2 AEE R 2| ERE
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is set out below. HIEAR ©
Segment revenues and results DEBUN R R 1A
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE2024F12831HILEE
Online sales Publications
of beauty and Sales of and
cosmetics luxury advertising
products products business Total
RLEEXA Silk7)5
Rititm HEESM BEEK &t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THER
Revenue g
Revenue from external RENDE P e
customers 684 6,950 13,207 20,841
Segment profit DERRF 601 2,539 6,058 9,198
Other income HialA 639
Other losses Hit BB (905)
Operating expenses TR (11,688)
Impairment loss recognised BHEEBEEAT
under the expected credit ERANAHESE
loss model (15,808)
Finance costs BAKA (1,803)
Loss before tax BREAIER (20,367)
Income tax 5 -
Loss for the year FREAE (20,367)
T BREEGER)ERAT

A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. R&EDIBEA)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBUREE R A (4E)

116

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

Online sales Publications
of beauty and Sales of and
cosmetics luxury advertising
products products business Total
BLEHEXRS YR
RAczdm HEEGm BEEB CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL TAL
Revenue 6
Revenue from external RENDE P K
customers 11,321 3,120 9,109 23,550
Segment profit D EREA 1,082 120 5,173 6,375
Other income HilA 154
Other (losses) or gains, net Hit (B8 s 38 (66,802)
Operating expenses RS (11,360)
Impairment loss recognised BHEEBEREAT
under the expected credit ERANRHESE
loss model (11,830)
Finance costs BENA (1,198)
Loss before tax BT A E R (74,661)
Income tax s -
Loss for the year FREE (74,661)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s material accounting policy
information described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profit represents the profit earned
from each segment without allocation of other income,
operating expenses, other (losses) or gains, net, impairment
loss recognised under expected credit loss model and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
management for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of unallocated bank
balances and cash and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include provisions and trade and other payables
attributable to the activities of the individual segments,

contract liabilities and lease liabilities.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

6. RKREH

BB ()

THEERAE

AREAMPREE °
R EBAREHREE S
B AHEENMEERE

AT BRI 2R K%
BERABNDN

L YaN
ME&ER

DEEEREMABAENEREE IR
FEE  TBREAIERTEHERS
nHBEREER S

0Lt & A5 35K

PRI DR AREE

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Segment assets DEPEE
Exhibition and trade show business and EBENZEZHREEELE KL
related services HEER 97 119
Publications and advertising business I & B 14,748 25,503
Sales of luxury products HEE %M 3,507 3,752
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics B EHEERA Rt
products 1,742 2,354
Total segment assets DEEERTR 20,094 31,728
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRS 171 335
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 8,221 8,962
Consolidated assets IREBE 28,486 41,025
Segment liabilities PHEE
Exhibition and trade show businessand EBENZEFEEEEK
related services 1B RS 369 369
Publications and advertising business T R EE % 49,919 49,436
Sales of luxury products HEZZm 1,876 1,947
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics A EHERA KMt
products 4,502 4,515
Total segment liabilities DEEEERE 56,666 56,267
Unallocated liabilities KOMEE 10,549 14,442
Consolidated liabilities meas 67,215 70,709
T BREEGER)ERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.

Information about the Group’s revenue for operations is from
external customers presented based on location of delivery
destination of the goods and place of services rendered.

CIAL STATEMENTS

1S 5 30 ()

632

REE LB N BBRAME -
BRIAEE R A SRS RS A R

TREBEE eV R B et s iR AR TS 0 3
TE e

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIMDEF RS FREBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 2024 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET THERT FAT
Guangdong-Hong Kong- BERANERR
Macau Greater Bay Area 20,841 23,550 1,109 2,278
Revenue from major customers REFEEFHKE

Revenue from customers who have individually contributing
over 10% of total sales of the corresponding years of the
Group is as follows:

RBEFEB LG AEEHERRED
10%H)F P UEI T

2024 2023

2024 20234

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Customer A (Note (b))’ ZEEA(KIEED))! N/ATE A 2,740
Customer B (Note (a))" EFB(MIzE(@)" N/ATE A 1,213

U The customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the current year.

Notes:

() Revenue from the above customers is arising from publications
and advertising business.

(b) Revenue from the above customer is arising from sales of luxury
products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

OTHER INCOME 7. HMEWA
2024 2023
2024 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Bank interest income RITH EMA - 2
Government grants (Note) R #78 Bh (BT 5 ) 629 —
Sundry income WA - 100
Exchange difference, net e X ZRE 5 10 52
639 154

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognise
government grants HK$629,000 (2023: Nil) related to incentive
subsidy for technology modernisation by the Government
Information Bureaus of the Macau SAR respectively. Government
grants were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the relevant
granting criteria.

BiaE - B E2024F 12 A31B L FE - AEER
PR EBATEBREORMERESR
17 Bk e 52 BRURT #6 B 629,000 7T (2023 4F
) o BB A% Eim B E LR
FERER o

—TomgEE BEEEGER)ERAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

8. OTHER LOSSES 8. HfttER
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE (17 - 19)

(notes 17, 19) (905) (1,399)
Loss on debt modification EBEE EE(ME27)

(note 27) - (1,434)
Forfeiture of deposit paid (note (a)) RUE TiRE (i) - (10,480)
Contract cost written off (note (b)) s & K9P A (5 (o)) - (6,000)
Provision (note (c)) 45 (FsE(c) - (37,489)

(905) (56,802)

Notes: B 5T

(@ Comprised of the carrying value of security deposit and @ PEERFLRIEEBESUEEHAENRLZK
capitalised contract costs amounting to HK$9,889,000 and EHENRESETENRE R LA LKA
HK$591,000, being forfeited and written off as the result of early 9,889,000/ 7T &2591,000/8 7T » BRA#E—F
termination for right of usage of advertising spaces. Further FIFEN RS M IR 20Kk 21 -
details were described in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(o) The account represented prepayment of rental costs of (b) ZERIEEZENESLESEANERNK
advertising spaces written off, details were described in note 21 I8 - FHEERRZERA WSR2 -
to these consolidated financial statements.

(c)  Provision represents present legal obligations that the Group ) BREAXEERREXRLE >BEHEMHED
would owe to the Prime Contractor due to early termination of BEEARENRITERER - £#—TFBHR
subcontracting agreement. Further details were described in note ZELR A SRR MIEE26 -

26 to these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MERAK -
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Interest on other borrowing (note 28) H & )AL 2 (B 5E28) 879 430
Interest on loan from a substantial FERRERFE
shareholder (note 27) (FfFzE27) 924 768
1,803 1,198
10. LOSS BEFORE TAX 10. BR¥EAIE R
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging: BREGATESIBIDASHIBR T Y B IHEF T -
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FET
Auditors’ remuneration — audit services  1ZEEIEN S — TR 1,000 880
Impairment loss recognised on trade E F & E M W IB R

and other receivables, net REEEFRE(MFE34)

(note 34) 15,808 11,830
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) R R EEE(MHFE17) 905 1,399
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - B REREITE (MiaE()

equipment (note (a) and note 16) K fizE16) 264 372
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKRA 4,494 13,239
Rental expenses in respect of HEEENEERS

short-term leases 884 1,153
Staff costs BITAA

Director’s emoluments (note 12) EEME (FE12) 1,218 1,065
Other staff costs H M8 TR

— salaries, allowances and benefits —¥e  EMEREYMET

in kind 2,419 6,023

— contributions to retirement benefits —RORAEFIET Bk

scheme 89 80
2,508 6,103
Note: BfaE -
(@) Depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2024 included (@) HE2024F12A31BLEEENTER
approximately HK$239,000 (2023: HK$239,000) in cost of & $H & A 2N %9 239,000 7% 7T ( 2023 F -
sales. 239,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

11.

INCOME TAX

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 as the Group has
incurred tax losses for both years of assessment.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

The income tax for the years can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

11. Fri8%

BEFNSHEMAES  AEKEEEEY
2,000,000/ JT A 1B 3R £8.25% i i
152,000,000/ T A= I K 81 516.5% °
A RS TR AR 5 6 = == 88 /)% 7 45
BB 1216.5%R B — T RANFS o

H E22024F K 2023F 12 A31HIEFE X
BEREDREFNER  AAEERMERT
HFEEHSRSTHRIEEETE -

RIS MR DL M E F E e [ FT R
BB MIE12% I EGH -

FAMEHEGEEa MEMEE KSR
FrOIRR B ATE IR < BIRRIN T

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Loss before tax BRAEAT AR (20,367) (74,661)
Tax charge at the Hong Kong Profits Tax 12 & & F|15 5 %£16.5%
rate at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (20234 : 16.5%) T & &
B (3,360) (12,319)
Tax effect of income not taxable and BETEHIE 2 BAERBUWA R
expenses not deductible for tax A HIRAZ OB BT E
purpose, net FER 2,758 12,405
Tax effect of temporary difference not REREEFEREH BT E
recognised - 42
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E b Bl ARE R ZE MK BN A
operating in other jurisdiction W TARBELE (77) (359)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRI AREREIEEE
recognised (205) -
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not RERGFHIBBEENE G E
recognised 884 227
Income tax FriS#i - =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$19,732,000 (2023:
HK$15,617,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
loss due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEME -
The emoluments of directors and the chief executive for the B E2024F [k 2023F12 H31 B IEFEH)
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: EERFETHAEMESHAT

Year ended 31 December 2024

HZ04F12A3ALFE
Contributions Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement  share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
HeR BINER RELEE
ik HthiER #®e TEMR  ROATEX &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Tign TER Tign TiEn

Executive directors HTEE

Hung Yuen Kin ALRfE - 708 - - - 708
Wong Yuk® Trge - 240 - - - 240
Lui Man Wah® AXED - - - - - -
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Wong Chi Ling B1R 90 - - - - 90
Lin Zexin® mEEe 20 - - - - 0
Liu Xiaomin® B0 72 - - - - 72
Lee Man Yeung® F3E0 18 - - - - 18
Total emoluments Zms 270 948 - - - 1,218
Notes: BiEE -
(@)  appointed on 31 May 2023. (@  H2023F5A31 BERE -
()  re-designated from independent non-executive director on 4 (o) H2023F4 A48 BB IFAITESAMT -
April 2023.
(©)  appointed on 12 March 2024 and resigned on 13 January 2025. (©) 202453 12AEZ AW R202551 13
HEHE -
(d) resigned on 12 March 2024. (@ 20243 F12HEBHT
()  appointed on 12 March 2023. (e) M2023F3A12AEZEAMT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 12. EEEE (E)

Year ended 31 December 2023

124

BE0023F12R31RILER
Contributions  Equity-settled
Salaries toretrement  share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees bengfits Bonus scheme expense Total
Fek SRR REEE
e B thAE #®e A RORRREX CE

HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THEL TiEx THET TAL THET THEL

Executive director/ YTES/BY

independent non- FHTES

executive director
Hung Yuen Kin RLRfE - 708 = = = 708
Wong Yuk® Tree - 114 - - - 114
Lui Man Wah® B XEY - - - - - -
Independent non- BUKNTES

executive directors
Wong Chi Ling TR 75 - - - - 75
Wong Ling Yan Philip¢~~ HEEO 8 - - - - 8
Lee Man Yeung® FYXHO 9 - - - - 90
Lin Zexin® hEEe 60 - - - - 60
Total emoluments EMe 233 822 - - - 1,055

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

There were no share options granted during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Except for a loan from Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, as detailed in note 27 to
these consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 12. EEMS(E) -
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no amount BHE2024F12A31HIEFE » BIERAE
(2023: Nil) was paid or payable by the Group to the directors ERZESHMFISMEARAEERRFTALTH
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note Efl— 5 A sk R FRIA (20234 © £ ){E
13 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or ARSI B AR E B2 K 12E)
as compensation for loss of office. Except for Mr. Lui, who HEBERA(E o BRa A NERE2024F12
waived his emolument for the year ended 31 December AS1BIEFERNMEIN - RAEEE &
2024, there was no arrangement under which a director EEMEXRBRET M ZEE -
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the both
years.

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. IEBREHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the FRNAEEREERHEETBEMEBE
year included two (2023: one) director, details of whose £(2023F : —RESE)  EHFMFEER
remuneration are set out in note 12 to the consolidated REMERRMFE12PHEE - FRHT=
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year H#(2023F : W) mxmFEE (BLIEAR
of the remaining three (2023: four) highest paid employees AESMIEETETHAE) NFHMFIB L
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the ™~

Company are as follows:

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMEF 1,932 3,787

Contributions to retirement benefits RRE A R

scheme 32 43

1,964 3,830

The number of highest paid employee who are not directors Be N FLA N BE ML IFEZN &= E
whose remuneration fell within the following bands: BAE

2024 2023

202445 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TFET

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,00058 7T 3 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

14.

15.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

14.

BRER

RABEE NEEBRERNEEERT)
REBEATEIENHE -

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Loss for the year attributable RAEHEAE AEGFEREIER
to owners of the Company (19,791) (73,721)
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
(Restated)
(#&E71)
Number of ordinary shares LEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary FUGTESRERREERF A
shares for the purposes of basic and TR N I
diluted earnings per share 69,502,527 59,594,696

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic loss per share for both years have been
adjusted to reflect the share consolidation (Note 30) during
the year ended 31 December 2024. Accordingly, the basic
loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
restated.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, dilutive
earnings per share has not been presented as there is no
potential dilutive shares outstanding.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. P13 - BHKRRME -
Furniture
Advertising Leasehold Office Motor and
billboard improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
RER REEE N RE BHREE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL T TAL ThL TAL
Cost [
At 1 January 2023 and R2023F1 1B R
1 January 2024 and 2024F1R1ANUR
31 December 2024 2024F 124318 1,675 314 817 480 1,227 4513
Accumulated depreciation Z3i&
At 1 January 2023 202351 A1A 418 304 812 480 1,084 3,098
Charge for the year FRFE 239 10 1 - 122 372
At31 December 2023and  M2023%F12A31H R
1 January 2024 202451 A1H 657 314 813 480 1,206 3470
Charge for the year ERxi 239 - 4 - 21 264
At 31 December 2024 1420245127315 896 314 817 480 1,227 3,734
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2024 12024512731 779 - - - - 779
At 31 December 2023 12023512 A31H 1,018 - 4 - 21 1,043
—ToNFFE EREEGZER)ERAFE 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Cost AR

At 1 January ®m1A1H 2,304 1,399

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — BB B N B FTE A&

(note 40) (Ff3E40) - 905
At 31 December M12A318 2,304 2,304
Accumulated impairment losses AR EERE
At 1 January M1 A1H 1,399 =
Impairment loss recognised in REEHRRRERE

the current year 905 1,399
At 31 December M12H31H 2,304 1,399
Carrying amount AREIE
At 31 December M12H31H - 905
Particulars regarding impairment testing of goodwill ABAEBRENANFERNZEGREUK
are disclosed in note 19 to these consolidated financial WRMFF19HEE -
statements.

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Club
membership
RERESE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R2023F1H1H ~ 2023128315 -

1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 202441 A1H K2024F12 A31H 330
The club membership has indefinite useful life and is carried BT e s F A FEIER » LR AR T
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The ZEREBEYR - REBSEATES
fair value of club membership is higher than the carrying REREE ©
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUSs”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

19. BEBERH

REBAHFIINENRENKER D EE
BRI EH AR X amReELEN
(REELEM]) - BEIRAOT :

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHIT
Cost: A
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics HLEHEEA RIS
products:
Yantic Limited (“Yantic”) fRigE R AR ([fRIE]) 905 905
Exhibition and trade show business RENE SRS MABRE
and related services:
To Be Concept Limited (“TBC”) BLEREIBRAR(BEER
201) 1,399 1,399
2,304 2,304
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B REDREEE (2,304) (1,399)
- 905

In addition to goodwill, property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets that generate cash flows together
with the related goodwill are also included in the respective
CGU for the purpose of impairment assessment.

Exhibition and trade show business and related
services CGU

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the directors
of the Group have determined that there is impairment
of goodwill directly related to Exhibition and trade
show business and related services CGU amounting
HK$1,399,000. The impairment loss has been recorded in
other losses during the year ended 31 December 2023, in
note 8 to these consolidated financial statements.

—E - UFFTR

BREEN  EEXBESTENDE  BWE
R R B BT A B E R AR R B IR At
AEREH £ 2 £ B P UGETTIRERT I

RENRESREXEREAERERESE
£EBN

HE2023F12A31HILFE » AEEE
ERETHRENEIREXEL NAHA
RIS ELEMNEEEENEERES
1,399,000 7T - BEEEBE T AZELE
SRR M8 & =2023F 12 A31H |-
FEMEMEE -

EREEER)BRAFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

19.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
(Continued)

Exhibition and trade show business and related
services CGU (Continued)

The impairment of goodwill under this CGU was resulted
by major changes in market conditions and the uncertainty
of profitability of the business of Exhibition and trade show
business and related services, the directors of the Company
suspended the business of Exhibition and trade show
business and related services, and as resulted the goodwill
of Exhibition and trade show business and related services
was fully impaired during the year ended 31 December
2023.

Online sales of beauty and cosmetic products CGU

The directors of the Group determined that there is
impairment loss amounting to HK$905,000 (2023: Nil)
related to goodwill attributable to online sales of beauty
and cosmetic products CGU during the year ended 31
December 2024.

The recoverable amounts of this CGU have been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash
flow method, which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a five-
year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.1% (2023:
15.2%) per annum calculated by using weighted average
cost of capital. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.5% (2023: 2.5%) growth rate.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecast and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for relevant industry. The key assumptions used by
management in setting the financial budgets for the initial
five-year period were as follows:

Forecast sales growth rates — based on past experience
adjusted for 2.5% (2023: 16%).

Operating profits — based on historical experience of
operating margins, adjusted for the impact of 9.6% (2023:
18.5%).

Cash conversion — based on the historical ratio of operating
cash flow to operating profit.
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19. EERER (8®)

RENESREXKEREBRBERSE
HEM(R)

IR € B A B AL R EDRE T R R TS AR
MEREREHCURREREFIREER
KBRS G e BT 8 ﬁﬁET%ml
= ARREZEFRENEIREER
&*EF%HE%‘%%“ At - @i2023¢12)%
J1AILFE  RENESREXKKIEHE
%%mﬁéaﬁﬁﬂﬁ

HEHEXBRIURREEEEN

AEBESFET - HE2024F12A3181F
FE - APLHEHEEARMARBESES
B FEE R A B AR E B 18 /A 905,000
BT (20234 « £#) o

R EEABMNRAKRESEECFE AR
ReREZREEFHEERETE %5
FEERAENRESWHEREAFHELE
F15.1% (20234 : 15.2% ) KT AT AL IR &
AMEFHERNK A ENTBEEDN
IE N7 /}\LE%E EU Eﬂf)iﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ \///IL.E
12.5% (20234 : 2.5% ) IBF R R
oo B REEME@AITEERTER - T
HBAAEEXNFEHRBIERE - B1BE
EHI e AT Ry SEERERNE
ZEERWT

FERHERERRER - RBEBFLRHRAE
2.5%(20234F : 16%) °

REEN - IRBEEMNBERNEL L5 -

7£9.6% (20234 : 18.5% ) W2 B E 1T
%Eko
ReEnh - RELCEReREHBEE R

MBS o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. ESRHMEBERREREMZSE -
OTHER DEPOSITS
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
Trade receivables E 5 W FOE 40,176 41,206
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (31,578) (15,770)
8,598 25,436
Deposits Ee 39 39
Rental deposits Hekse 58 58
Prepayment TEfT IR 20 20
Other receivables H b eI AR 6,659 6,756
15,374 32,309
Less: deposits paid for securing W SRR IEREBEEET A
advertising space shown under B ESME MK
non-current assets (Note) e (MIsE) - =
Shown under current assets TIRRRENEEET 15,374 32,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. ESRHMERFTER LIRS (&)

OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)

132

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered

into a subcontracting agreement with the Prime Contractor who
is an independent third party to the Group, whereby certain
advertising spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing
Facilities are subcontracted to the Group. Further details in
relation to the Subcontracting Agreement are set out in the
Management and Discussion Analysis to the 2020 annual
report. The Group was required to pay a security deposit of
HK$10,500,000 (MOP10,815,000) (“Security Deposit”) to secure
the advertising spaces from 1 January 2020 to 31 May 2025.
The effective interest rate of the non-current deposits is 2.4% per
annum.

The Group classifies the Security Deposit as a financial asset
at amortised cost and assessed the fair value of the Security
Deposit as at settlement date discounted by the prevailing
market interest rate. The difference between the fair value of the
Security Deposit as at settlement date and the transaction price
of HK$10,500,000 (MOP10,815,000) is recorded as a contract
cost, as disclosed in note 21 to these consolidated financial
statements. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group did not record interest income on the Security Deposit
amortised under the effective interest rate due to the early
termination of the Subcontracting Agreement for the abolition
of the right of using advertising spaces with effect from 30 April
2023 (the “Termination”).

According to the terms of the Subcontracting Agreement, the
Security Deposit amounting to HK$9,889,000 as at 30 April
2023 paid to the Prime Contractor for securing advertising
spaces will be forfeited by the Prime Contractor. As a result, it
will be recorded as a forfeiture of the deposit paid and reflected
under other losses, net in note 8 to these consolidated financial
statements during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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REBZE2020F12A31 B ILFE - AEEHE
FAREBBYS = TNEDBEI LD
i BUHEEEORNETESMNES S
FTAEE - BHAD BiHHNE—SFHBHR
2020F FHMEEE TR - XEH
JA31110,500,000/%7t.(10,815,00032 9 7T.)
RFEE(MREFER ) AREF2020F1 A1AE
202555 A31 AN ESEME - EEIEZREH
BERFEAETF2.4% °

REEBRESDERIZBENLATENS
BEE  WHRESHEERIRRTNS
MERBHATE RESHREEAHA
F{H 232 5 (€ 10,500,000 7t (10,815,000
SRPITT) 2 MR E AR ES B A - 5
BRAREVERRWT21HE - REZE
2023F 12 A31HILFE - ARIRATR LD
B - 8202354 A0 BERESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. ESRHEMEBEWREREMIZE (HE)
OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)
The Group provided customers with credit period ranging AEERFEFREERALZERBBEO
from O to 90 days from the date on which invoice was issued. ZAMEEN - AEEEBREFPHNEE
The credit terms of each customer of the Group were HRASENHEEBKEE - YAGFAS
determined by the Group’s sales team and were subject to EEREERBEEFPNNREE RIER
review and approval of the Group’s management based on HASEEBBERNEREMRIER
the customers’ payment history, transaction volume and AAEE -
length of business relationship with the Group.
All outstanding trade receivables balances were being FIBRERE S EBGRIBAREANEEH
reviewed by the Group’s sales department on a regular E X HATERT - LAREIR Bh(E e 8 HA P U 5K
basis to ensure that any overdue receivable was promptly TEET MR R R EUE E W RITE) o &N
monitored and appropriate collection actions were taken. SEEHSHHRELAER  MAEEE
The Group’s sales department would follow up on the IS ERINEGEE - MRS EARER
collections and the Group’s accounting department would BERAEKRNS - NEBRBEREUVEETTE
monitor the progress of collection. For those material long BB o REIZE 20244 202312 A
outstanding balances, legal actions would be taken for debt S1BEIEFE - AREBREEEREDEREIT
collection. During the years ended 31 December 2024 and EEUETS o
2023, no legal actions were taken by the Group for debt
collection.
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (before REZAHZINE SFRKKE(HNREER
allowance for credit losses) at the end of the reporting period EEBRER) N RERROERRITAT :
presented based on the invoice days:
2024 2023
20245 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1-30 days 1230H 849 3,419
31-90 days 31%290H 468 739
91-365 days 91%365H 3,455 11,882
Over 365 days HiE365H 35,403 25,166
40,175 41,206
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other B ZE2024%F £ 2023F 12 A31 AL FEH
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2024 and B 5 I H b JE W IE R B R A 5 1B S B
2023 are set out in note 34. 7134 °
T BREEGER)ERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

21.

22,

CONTRACT COSTS 21. SR
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cost to fulfill contracts in relation to: BITBBATEERNE K I
Publications and advertising business ~ FII¥1 & B4 %75 6,591 6,664
Less: Contract cost for early termination J& : 12 F 4 1HHBRA)A LIRKAR
of licence (note) (f3E) (591) (591)
Less: Cost for right of use of billboard & : B2 {F FARER A (KisE)
(note) (6,000) (6,000)
- 73

Note: Owing to the Termination as mentioned in note 20 to these
consolidated financial statements, the carrying amount of
capitalised contract costs and prepayments for short term
rental of advertising spaces of approximately HK$591,000 and
HK$6,000,000 respectively were written off as contract cost
written off and recorded in other (losses) or gains, net in note 8
to these consolidated financial statements during the year ended
31 December 2023.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances

Bank balance comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
with a maturity period of three months period or less,
bearing prevailing market interest rates. As at 31 December
2024, the interest rate ranged from 0.01% to 0.26% (2023:
0.01% to 0.1%) per annum.
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22,

MIEE - RS AR A SRR 20T AR IE - &
LB KR A R S B A2 B S A 38
HIBREEE 5 B%591,0007 7T 56,000,000
BITEMEACMBENE NN ALTAETE
202312 A31 B I FE B4R & B 15k i
FE8HR E A (E518 ) sk e T 88 o

RITEHEES

BITEBRBREREURR=ZE AR
BB RIRIRITMIG ARG B R ERT
TR - B2024F12831H » FRENTF
0.01%%20.26%(20234F : FF|&0.01% %
0.1%) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

23. INVENTORIES 23. FE& -
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Finished goods and merchandises SR oo X o 1,004 1,404
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. ESRHMENSRIE
2024 2023
20244 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade payables B S ENRIR 10,957 10,815
Other payables HAFER IR 9,918 9,841
Accrued expenses (Note) FEETE A (FisE) 5,785 3,894
26,660 24,550
Note: Accruals mainly consist of accrued staff costs and accrued Mz BHEATZZEEETEIRAKRER
professional fee. BEER-
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within TBHEIMBE SEMNFIERR —FREEK
one year or are repayable on demand. BRERERE -
During the year, the credit period granted by the suppliers REAREERTHEER RN F0E
are generally ranging from O to 60 days (2023: 0 to 60 days). 60H (20234 : 0Z260H) °
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the UWTAREZEZHZHHEYNE ZENKIER
end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice WG AR BRE AT
dates:
2024 2023
20244F 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0-60 days 0£60H - 846
61-90 days 61£290H - 149
Over 90 days B0 H 10,957 9,820
10,957 10,815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, 22024412 A31H L FE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EHAE
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Receipt in advance for advertisement  TBURE & AR IS FUE
service 1 8
Movements in contract liabilities EHEEEH
2024 2023
2024%F 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Balance at 1 January 1 A1 BR&EsR 8 856
Decrease in contract liabilities as a EFAERT ABYIELD
result of recognising revenue during BENBRAMERENEERD
the year was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the period (7) (856)
Increase in contract liabilities as a FAREFPKRRESRED
result of consideration received from B &M
customers during the year 1 8
Balance at 31 December M2 31 B EEe 1 8
When the Group receives a deposit at the acceptance EAEETCEREERERESREHERE

FARNRKERRE  HERENERERE
Wt EL B = WA R o

of exhibition and trade show project and advertisement
contracts, it results in contract liabilities at the beginning of
the contract until revenue is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

26. PROVISION

As set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group entered into the Subcontracting Agreement with the
Prime Contractor. Under this agreement, certain advertising
spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities were
subcontracted to Tiance Cultural Communication Limited
(“Tiance Cultural”), a subsidiary of the Group. The Prime
Contractor subcontracted the right to use the advertisement
spaces of billboards in Macau and Zhuhai, specifically Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macau-Bridge Macau Section Passenger
Clearance Building to Tiance Cultural for a term of 65
months from 1 January 2020 to 31 May 2025. The monthly
subcontracting fee of HK$1,500,000 (“Monthly Service
Fee”) was paid to the Prime Contractor for conducting its
publication and advertising business.

Effective from 30 April 2023, Tiance Cultural and the
Prime Contractor agreed to terminate the Subcontracting
Agreement. According to the Subcontracting Agreement,
the Prime Contractor has the right to receive from Tiance
Cultural, and Tiance Cultural is obliged to pay the Prime
Contractor the Monthly Service Fee for the remaining term of
the Subcontracting Agreement that Tiance Cultural did not
fulfill. The provision was made based on the Monthly Service
Fee and remaining term of the Subcontracting Agreement
that Tiance Cultural is required to fulfill.

26.

—E - UFFTR

Bt

BN ER A ISR K207 HE
2020F12H31HLLFE  AEBEES B
BMEI D BnE  BELEBZEEEEORE
METESUSETASBENRBARX
R LBEEERAR(IREXXE]) « £5
B 5 R PY K Bk (BN BRI ANE SR Y R ik
BAR)EEMESMNENFERAESBE TR
Rt - HAR 202041 A1 H £ 202545
A31BAHesEA - EARES BRI
1,500,000 LR B E([FARBE ) AL
EHTY REEER -

H2023%F4 A30HE @ REMLEED B
AREKL LS BHE - BESBHE - £
7B R S WA AR 3 e B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

27. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER 27. FEREREM

The balance represents loans from Mr. Lui, the substantial
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to a series of
extension agreements between the Company and Mr. Lui
from 2020 to 2023, the repayment dates of the loans were
extended.

Movement of the loan from a substantial shareholder during
the year is as follows:

ERARBARRIZEERRELEENE
0 IREARR R A e A 20205 £2023
FERITN—RINERDE  BERZER
HELEE -

FAXTERRERESBERNT

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

At 1 January M1A1H 2,859 12,157

Repayment during the year FNEK (3,783) (11,500

Imputed interest expense (note 9) HEF S FAZ () 924 768
Charged to other losses at debt REBEERHREMER

modification (note 8) (FfzE8) - 1,434

At 31 December M12A31H - 2,859

As of 31 December 2023, the loans are repayable within
one year and are carried an interest of 2% per annum. Along
with the extensions, the Group also made partial repayments
before the agreed due dates. The extensions and partial
repayments of the loan qualify as loan modifications. As a
result, the Group recognised a loss of HK$1,434,000 due
to the loan extensions and the early repayments during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the whole
amount of loan had been repaid.

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

MR2023F12 A31H » ZEREBER—FANE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

OTHER BORROWINGS 28. HfEFR
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T FH&T
Other borrowings HAfER 2,800 5,800

The borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
are repayable within one year. These borrowings carried a
fixed interest rate of 18% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: 18%)).

Included in the borrowings was an amount of nil (2023:
HK$3,000,000) guaranteed by the Company.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) A SHAREHOLDER/
A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY/A DIRECTOR OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amounts are unsecured, interest free, and repayable on
demand.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are as follows:

29.

30.

ZEBHRABTEE  RER—FRAE
B HE2024F12A31BHILFEE © %5
BRIZE T F KR FF18%5T 8 (2023 F :
18%) °

EH R S FE (20234 : 3,000,000 7T)
HRAREER -

FEW (44) IR 3R MY B 13 R R AR
BRRHEAREERIE

BRAFAREER  2ENEEREE -

&N

FRARRFIRALEAT :

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Authorised: EE
500,000,000 ordinary shares of 500,000,0000% &M E1E0.2/8 7T
HK$0.2 each (2023: 5,000,000,000 B (20234 : 5,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) f% Z IR EE0.02/8 T L A% ) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
87,091,200 ordinary shares of 87,091,200 G E{E0.2/8 7T
HK$0.2 each (2023: 622,080,000 A% (20234 © 622,080,0000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) FREEO0.02/ T L @A) 17,419 12,442
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

30. IRAS (/&)

The movements in authorised and issued share capital of
the Company during the year were as follows:

FARRBEEREBHITIRAZSIAT

Number of Number of Share
authorised issued Issued premium
shares shares capital account Total
AERGEE ERTRHEE BRTRA R RER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THL TATL
At1 January 2023 M2023%1A1R 5,000,000,000 518,400,000 10,368 100,379 110,747
Issuance of new shares by way ~ WMELE A& 1T31%
of placing, net of issue costs ~ FABRETAAA - 103,680,000 2,074 12,079 14,153
At 31 December 2023 and 1202312318 R
1 January 2024 2024F1R1H 5,000,000,000 622,080,000 12,442 112,458 124,900
Share consolidation RiAH (4,500,000,000) (783,820,800 = = =
Issuance of new shares by way ~ WAECE H B3k
of placing, net ofissue costs ~ HIBREITAA - 248832000 4977 6,345 11,322
At 31 December 2024 1A2024F12531R 500,000,000 87,091,200 17,419 118,808 136,222

On 3 April 2023, an aggregate of 103,680,000 placing
shares have been allotted and issued with the net proceeds
amounting to approximately HK$14.2 million at the issue
price of HK$0.14 per placing share.

On 28 June 2024, the issuance of an aggregate of
124,416,000 new shares by way of placing was completed.

On 3 December 2024, the issuance of an aggregate of
124,416,000 new shares by way of placing was completed.

On 12 November 2024, the director of the Company
proposed to implement a share consolidation on the
basis that every 10 issued would be consolidated into one
consolidated share. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed on 10 December 2024, the share consolidation
was approved by the shareholders of the Company and
has become effective on 12 December 2024. Immediately
after the share consolidation, the total number of issued
shares of the Company was adjusted from 870,912,000 to
87,091,200.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23
January 2015 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive and rewards to eligible participants including:

()  any executive or non-executive director including any
independent non-executive director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i)  any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate management) to the
Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the Group;
and

(v) any other person who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group to take up
options (together, the “Participants”).

The Company is entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme does not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date on
16 February 2015. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue a
circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, with such individual and his or her close
associates (or his associates if the individual is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. BRETEI(E)
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Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the date of
the offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the option
period after the option has been granted but, in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. An option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the
extent not already exercised) on the expiry of the option
period.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may
be exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the option. The exercise price is
determined by the directors and shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share on the
date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (jii) the nominal value of the share.

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Scheme
is adopted, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and options which
are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

All of the share options granted under the Scheme have
been cancelled as at 16 October 2019.

There were no share options granted during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 and outstanding number of
share option remained Nil as at each of the reporting period.
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly contribution of HK$1,500. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in Macau are covered by a government-mandated defined
contribution plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macau Government. Contributions are generally made by
both employees and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund Contribution
managed by the Macau Government. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits is to make
the specified contributions.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation. No
forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the
existing level of contributions.
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXREBREE

144

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at
the date of this annual report, there was sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.
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FREARANRBER ARBIGED - BREE
BATRA R b o

ARAEFFFFRIAENER - (ERUL
W —8bD EFEEREAMANE
FHPIEAN AR - RIBESOHER
2% ARERERRNE - BITHKR
D KRB AR ETHEFRRELORA
BEBAFEEEBEARLRE -

BEARQRAIARESHERNEREES
o MAFHRAH  BIEGEM EMAR
A3 - ARBERFTPORESEHITRG
25%H) BN FRIFRE -

2024 2023

20245 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Total borrowings (note) CECEEEC D) 2,800 8,659

Less: Bank balances and cash o SRITERKIRS (9,590) (3,552)

Net debt (EVoE ] (6,790) 5,107
Capital deficiency attributable to owners ZN2 BB A FE{h & A& 4t

of the Company (36,148) (27,679)

Net debt to capital deficiency ratio FREEARBALLLE 0.19 0.18

Note: Total borrowings represent loan from a substantial shareholder
and other borrowings.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. €I A
Categories of financial instruments ST AR

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost LA SHR AT EM S R E E 26,352 37,250

Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost B EHR AN 29,461 33,212

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a shareholder, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, trade and other receivables
and deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, other borrowings and loan from a substantial
shareholder. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca
same as the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk
which materially affect the Group’s result of operations.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. £RT AR

146

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

TRIEREEBRRRBK(E)

Market risk (Continued) TS B (1)
Interest rate risk Ve

During the year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed rate loans from a substantial
shareholder and other borrowings (see notes 27 and 28 for
details of the borrowings).

The Group is not exposed to any significant cash flow
interest rate risk which may materially affect the Group’s
results of operations in 2024 and 2023.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collaterals, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every
major customer periodically. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 22% (2023: 22%) of the total trade receivables of
the Company was due from the largest customer and 36%
(2023: 70%) of the total trade receivables of the Group was
due from the largest 5 customers. Taking into accounts the
creditworthiness of the customers, the credit risk measures
and the historical levels of bad debts, the directors consider
that such concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. ERMTRE) -
Financial risk management objectives and policies cHEREEBERBE(E)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEGR B EFTL(E)

As part of Group’s credit risk management, the Group EAASBEEERRERN—ID + A%
applied internal credit rating for its customers. Certain EHHETFRERAANBEETR - NEREH
of the Group’s trade receivables are grouped under a ETESRYFIENREXREER RS
provision matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics W REEBANBERNLRRE RS
by reference to past default experience and current past HRBNEBEERE T4 - TRIEHE#H
due exposure of the debtor. The following table provides FrEREERR & E 5 ERKIERNTERE
information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for EEBENER - HI11R2024F Kk20234F
trade receivables which are assessed collectively based on 12 A31 BIRBE A e e 1 TRE 8 AT

provision matrix as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Gross Weighted Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount
InfEFE 58
BREAAE BER FERE REEE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THERT THERT FHET
At 31 December 2024 A2024%F12H31H
Trade receivables 2 5 WA
Current BNHA 351 5.67% (20) 331
1 to 30 days past due A1 E30H 498 7.16% (36) 462
31 to 90 days past due #HA31E90H 469 12.29% (58) 411
91 to 365 days past due #HI91 £365H 3,455 61.69% (2,131) 1,324
Over 365 days past due — B HAFAAR365 H —
not credit impaired RHBEERE 23,140 73.78% (17,070) 6,070
Over 365 days past due — 1 BB A365 A —
credit impaired HIREERE 12,262 100% (12,262) -
40,175 78.6% (31,577) 8,598
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. @I AE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cHEREEBERBE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEGR B EFTL(E)

Gross  Weighted  Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount

A EE
RERE EEEX  EERE  ERESE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FAT FH&T
At 31 December 2023 A2023%F12H31H
Trade receivables Z 5 WA
Current B 3,419 1.49% (51) 3,368
1 to 30 days past due BHI1E=30R 554 7.76% (43) 511
31 to 90 days past due BHI31 =90 433 9.47% (41) 392
91 to 365 days past due #HI91 £365H 11,634 16.54% (1,924) 9,710
Over 365 days past due — #61 BB A365 0 —
not credit impaired AEREERE 21,664 47.12% (10,209) 11,455
Over 365 days past due — I HAR E365 H —
credit impaired LR EERE 3,502 100% (3,502) =
41206 38.27% (15,770) 25,436
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical AT B EETIRBEKER KRBT FEHARN
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors L EBRENRGFHSEILFBEN HEE
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that SN AR, 45 1 BN R] 1S Y RIS M B RHE R
is available without undue cost or effort. Such forward- AR AEBEEEFRAE@ANEEER
looking information is used by management of the Group to FHERERE B R E B A RIBRAR T M ©
assess both the current as well as the forecast direction of AEBEERETHBRNZOEUNERET
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping is regularly BEFARBBEER S B -

reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The carrying amount of the bank balances and cash, other
receivables and deposits, amount due from a shareholder
and amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on bank balances and cash is limited because
the counterparties are financial institutions and banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

In determining the ECL of the Group’s other receivables
and deposits, amount due from a shareholder and amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
management assessed the expected losses individually by
estimation based on historical credit loss experience, general
economic conditions of the relevant industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. Based on the result of the foregoing, no impairment
loss was recognised during the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 because the amount of ECL is immaterial.

34.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. @I AE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cHEREEBERBE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEGR B EFTL(E)
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of RE 22024 F & 2023F 12 A31 B I F
trade and other receivables during the years ended 31 € B hEMERZIENEESEERE
December 2024 and 2023 is as followings: SENT -
Trade receivables
B 5 EWFIE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2023 12023%F1H1H 3,940
Impairment loss recognised, net (note 10) BRI R EE R FRE(MIFE10) 11,830
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 12023 12 A31H &2024F1 A1H 15,770
Impairment loss recognised, net (note 10) BRERA R EEEFRE(FIFE10) 15,808
At 31 December 2024 M2024%12831H 31,578
At 31 December 2024, the Group has trade receivables R2024F12A31H » AEBERE ALY
with gross amount of approximately HK$12,262,000 (2023: 12,262,0007% 7T (20234 : #J3,502,000/%
approximately HK$3,502,000) being credit impaired since TTME SEBGFIBEHREERE - REZ
the management of the Group considered these balances AREEERERASTAR gl E sk &5l 5 U
are unlikely to be recoverable or partially recoverable. ElIZ 5 4E8R ©
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
any leading covenants and to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
The table has been drawn up based on the earliest date at
which the Group can be required to pay. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is

34. @I AE)

TREREERRRBGE(E)

AEBHNBRBERERAR LBHRD
BB RALTEEMEERZE - NHERF
HGRARRE  ULKRBETZSHEE
B 78 R A G R DA R LA B R B R R

TREEMNELEIERSRE @ JIRER
SE AR B RN TN BHBE © i
MEBRAER - RIIRER & B R A =K i 4%
BFHARMREER -

——

derived from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting

period.
More than
Weighted Within 1 year Total Total
average 1 year or but within - undiscounted carrying
effectiverate  on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
TS 15/ BB1F REB
BBA= FREXR BHR2E REREAHR FEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
% TAR TER ThR TER
2024 2024F
Non-derivative financial ~ Jfi£&RERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMENFIR 26,660 - 26,660 26,660
Loan from a substantial TEREER
shareholder - - - - -
Other borrowings HitfER 18 3,304 - 3,304 2,800
Amount due to a related party JE{ B A FUA 265 - 265 265
Total ait 30,229 - 30,229 29,725
STONEE ERERGEER)ERAT 151
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34. TRTR(E)
THREMREEBERBEK ()

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TEE LR (E)
More than
Weighted Within 1 year Total Total
average 1 year or but within - undiscounted carrying
effective rate on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
ET3 1ER R ABEER

BIRFIx JEEX  EIREF REREAR REAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TEL TAL TETL TEL

152

2023 2023
Non-derivative financial T4 LRARE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMENFR 24,550 - 24,550 24,550
Loan from a substantial FERRER

shareholder 7 3,069 - 3,069 2,859
Other borrowings HitfER 18 6,844 - 6,844 5,800
Amount due to a related party JE{ B 5 FUE 3 - 3 3
Total At 34,466 - 34,466 33,212
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIAQAFEFE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities BEREMEEL L FETENEIERE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEERE BN FE
Fair value hierarchy R FEER

The Company did not have any financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023.
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. BEREEHEENEEYEER -

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TREJIAKEEREFDELNARE
BFlE - BRRELFERECES - AR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BEYEEANBENERSREHARKIA
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will enE B BEATIKIBANEEL
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash cHeRERENEREGTHEEANE S
flows as cash flows from financing activities. MEMEE-

M L

Loan from a
Other substantial
borrowings shareholder
(including (including
interest interest
payable) payable) Total
HifE™® FERREN
(BEEAFE) (BEEAFE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TET FET FET
At 1 January 2023 72023%F1 A1H - 12,157 12,157
Borrowing arising from acquisition of B A REER
a subsidiary &3 3,000 - 3,000
Charged to other gains and losses at ~ IMERZE et fdzs
debt modification (note 8) K& (FEE8) - 387 387
Loss on early repayment of loan REEE—LFERRER
from a substantial shareholder HE1E = 1,047 1,047
Interest expense (note 9) F B Fx (FFE9) 430 768 1,198
Borrowing raised EGER 3,000 - 3,000
Repayment BR (200) (11,500) (11,700)
Interest paid BAFIE (430) - (430)
At 31 December 2023 and 2023124318 &
1 January 2024 200441 A1H 5,800 2,859 8,659
Borrowing arising from acquisition of W — B A BELR
a subsidiary EE = - -
Charged to other gains and losses at ~ MEKE B R HRE MUkES
debt modification (note 8) REE(FEs) - - -
Loss on early repayment of loan REEE—RFERRER
from a substantial shareholder HE1E = - -
Interest expense (note 9) UG DL) 879 924 1,803
Borrowing raised EEEX = = =
Repayment BER (3,000) (2,859) (5,859)
Interest paid BF 8 (879) (924) (1,803)
At 31 December 2024 12024F12831H 2,800 - 2,800
T BREEGER)ERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. EXEHAIRXS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial Bréra B TSR R B At 5 T EE & N + AR
statements, the Group had the following material EERFREUTERBEB IR S :

transactions with related parties during the year:

The key management personnel of the Group are the REBFEEBEAERARAESE -
directors of the Company. Details of their emoluments are ZRN S FFIBAMIEE 12425, -

disclosed in note 12.

Mr. Lui, a substantial shareholder and an executive director ARARIEERBENRTEEALEREER
of the Company, had granted an unsecured loan facility HR (ER2024F 12 A31HEm) iRt &E
of up to HK$40,000,000 during the available period which A]#£40,000,000/8 LR B I E R B E o
will expire on 31 December 2024. On 27 June 2023, there 2023F6 H27 8 - FIMRIEK %A LA
was the Fourth Extension Agreement which terminated the IIEREAER@ME - B2023F6H26H
unutilised loan facility with effective on 26 June 2023.The AN - ZBMERFNE2%TE - BHE
Facility bears an interest of 2% per annum. During the year 2024F12A31HIEFE - EREREE
ended 31 December 2024, the whole amount of loan had o FHER2HME2T

been repaid. Please refer to note 27 for details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. TEMBEARIFE -
General information of subsidiaries B AR —RE R
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of RBERRNA R EEMMB A RFFIBE
the reporting period are set out as follows: FanR
Issued and
fully paid
Country/place of Class of shares share capital/
incorporation or  held/registered Proportion of ownership interest and voting registered
Name of subsidiary operation capital power held by the Company capital  Principal activities
BRI BRIR
g2E%/ fishe,/ AAARANRRRRER BRRE/
HEARER % EMERER REELA AfEx FTEE
2024 2023
0245 20235
Direct  Indirect Direct Indirect
BR [ Bk i
% % % %
Grand Oceanus (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 - 100 - HK$1  Sales of luxury products
5. 8(ER)ERAR Bh EER BT #HEEGm
(Ocean Media (Hong Kong) Limited - Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 - 100 HKS$100  Sales of magezines and
provision of magazines
advertising service
BREELRERAR Bk Lk 10087 HERSERRMES
BERH
To Be Concepts Limited (TBC') ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - 67 - 67 HK$10,000  Provision of extibition and
trade show service
BUXSERAR(BLRE]) &% LR 1000087 RUEERESRERS
Tiance Cultural Communication ~ Macau Ordinary - 99 - 99 MOP100,000  Sales and distribution of
Limited (TCC") publications and sales
of print and online
advertising space
AR BRARAR 1§ Eak 10000087 SHERETHM - LHE
(TRREER ) R RiR LR E
Yantic Limited (*Yantic ) Hong Kong Ordinary - 50.1 - 501 HK$5,005,010  Online sales of beauty and
(note) cosmetics products
RERRAR(RE) W) &S LB 5005010870 B LHEXARMAR
Note: Yantic Limited is a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in 5T : IRIBER A B ARNA BRSBTS AR
Hong Kong. The subsidiary was acquired on 1 April 2023. B AT o iz BATN2023F4 A1 8 HI
i o
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RERBEMBRRZETEMNEBEES

the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. TEME A RFIEE)

(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the directors result
in particulars of excessive length.

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling

R 2 R B — ARE R ()

ERBINARRESRREEZEAEE
XEXBENARBMBAR - EFR
5o REEMINBARNFEHERFE
BRILE o

HEEAHZRERHIFH 2 ENE A A
HYFF &

TRIF AR B AR
2 AHIED AN :

interest:
Proportion of ownership
Place of interest and voting
incorporation and place power held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business the Company non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
ERERE
NEEEERR
WEARER LR BE L i B S B REELAH PEREFEREZNER 2t ERER
2024 20283 2024 20283 2024 20283
20244 20234 20244 2023%F 20244 2023%F
TBC Hong Kong 67% 67.0% (8) (128) (499) (491)
B RE 35
TCC Macau 99.0% 99.0% (138) (635) (573) (435)
KRR R
Yantic Hong Kong 50.1% 50.1% (430) (1,079) (1,509) (1,079)
Rig B

BRAKERAE FHERERNHER
AP BEMBIRERN T - L THMBE
I EREBARRIREHATNESHE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

37 PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. FEMBARIFEE) -
(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) M AR —RER (&)
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has FEEAHIZEREGWHZENBE L T
material non-controlling interest (Continued) B 18 (&)
TBC TCC Yantic 2024 2023
KEXAE

BHEE =% iR 20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
F&TT FHET FH&TT FHET FH&TT

Current assets MENEE 2,215 13,767 1,740 17,722 26,881
Non-current assets FEMEBNEE - 777 2 779 1,043
Current liabilities MEEE (3,726)  (73,764) (4,765)  (82,255)  (76,958)
Net liabilities BE%5E (1,511)  (59,220) (3,023) 63,754 (49,034
Equity attributable to RREER AEIE

owners of the Company &z (1,012)  (58,647) (1,514)  (61,173)  (47,029)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥ER#ERS (499) (573) (1,509) (2,581) (2,005)
Revenue sk = 9,162 684 9,846 20,585
Expenses L 23)  (22,998) (1,546) (24,567)  (84,896)
Loss and total BB N2 ER < E5E

comprehensive expense (23) (13,836) (862) (14,721)  (64,311)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, 22024412 A31H L FE

37. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. TEMBATFEE)
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued) M AR —RER ()
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has FHEEAHIERERHIHEELB A
material non-controlling interest (Continued) Hys# 18 (4&)
TBC TCC Yantic 2024 2023
REXAL

BHEE =% iR 20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
F&TT FHET FH&TT FHET FH&TT

Loss attributable to VINNETE ¥ =N
owners of the Company ~ E518 (15) (13,698 (432)  (14,145) (62,469

Loss attributable to the IR E I R (G B 1B

non-controlling interest 8) (138) (430) (576) (1,842)
Loss and total FABBEREERAE

comprehensive expense ~ #2%a

for the year (23)  (13,836) (862) (14,721)  (64,311)
Net cash inflow from KEEBASIRE

operating activities MAFRE - 3,031 390 3,421 10,743

Net cash outflow from KEEHNRE
investing activities Viiaebes-: ] - = - - (4)

Net cash outflow from BB RS E
financing activities e F R - - (504) (504)  (10,700)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) IR&RACRit)
FEE - 3,031 (114) 2,917 39
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. RARIMBMRRKRRFERS -
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) AARMBAMRE
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RH B A RIS 105 105
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSE B~ RIZRIE 96 =
Amount due from a shareholder UL A% BR SR IE 539 539
Prepayment and other receivables — TB1~ FXI8 & E 4t FEUG FIE 6,012 6,012
Cash and cash equivalents REMRNSEEY 147 147
6,794 6,698
Total assets EEHEE 6,899 6,803
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable 72 T#EG AEL
to owners of the Company EERR#E
Share capital N 17,419 12,442
Reserves (e (20,999) (23,384)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity ~ (EZAEAl) FESELE (3,580) (10,942)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, 22024412 A31H L FE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. ADRTHMBMRRRRFHEES (&)
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) AABHMBARRE(E)
(Continued)
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHIT
LIABILITIES &
Current liabilities REEE
Financial guarantee contract MIEERED - 188
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASHBY BB A RIFE 205 6,046
Accruals and other payables JEET & R R E b FE T RKIE 10,274 8,652
Loan from a substantial shareholder FTERRER - 2,859
Total liabilities =Nt 10,479 17,745
Capital deficiency and liabilities ~ EAEAR & & (6,899) (6,803)
Net current liabilities REBEEFRE (3,685) (11,047)
Total assets less total liabilities EEAERSEESE (3,580) (10,942)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. ADRTHMBMRRRRFHEES (&) -
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Reserve of the Company (b) AATHE
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R EE EXfE RitEE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THL THL THL
At 1 January 2023 202351 A1A 100,379 7,591 (11,541) (3,571)
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERTEE
expense for the year - - (31,892) (31,892)
Issuance of new shares by way PARLE A BITHR
of placing, net of issue costs MRBEITA 12,079 - - 12,079
At 31 December 2023 and 2023128318 K
1 January 2024 202451810 112,458 7,591 (143,433) (23,384)
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZERZRE
expense for the year - - (3,960) (3,960)
Issuance of new shares by way DABLE A BT
of placing, net of issue costs MBRBEITHA 6,345 - - 6,345
At 31 December 2024 20245128318 118,803 7,501 (147,393) (20,999)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=2024F12 A31 A |t F &

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. WiE—REKEBLQTE
MR2023F4 18 » NEBEABREB1ET
U BB IR IE A IR A 7]150.1% 2 B /TR » ik
EFRATRFAREN FHEEA R

On 1 April 2023, the Group acquired 50.1% of the issued
share capital of Yantic Limited for a total consideration of
HK$1. Yantic Limited is engaged in online sales of beauty
and cosmetics products during the year. The acquisitions Mo WD EESEXBREREEEZT
are for the purpose of diversification of business and product bt - WEHAREEIREEEEBEEBRK
portfolio and create synergies with the existing advertising J& °

business of the Group.

PrEMRIEER AR RIEAIEENEE

=

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Yantic

162

Limited acquired as at the date of acquisition are as follows: WERB 2 ATFEDT
Total
st
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets acquired: Frus g F & -
Property, plant and equipment JE = YN 1
Inventory T8 2,359
Trade and other receivables B 5 LA M EYGRIA 259
Bank and cash balances RITRIR AR 1,735
Trade and other payables B 5 R HABERFIR (1,842)
Amount due to a director of Yantic Limited  JEfIIRIE B R A G — (I EEHIE )
Amount due to the then shareholder of FERIFRIEE R A R E B AR R 08
Yantic Limited (1,316)
Other borrowings HAB AR (3,000)
(1,807)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R A 902
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 17) WeRg E A R R B (M EE17) 905
Satisfied by: X8 :
Cash Be -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEERFREMA
Cash consideration paid ENEREERE =
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEIR & R EEBY 1,735
1,735
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 431 B L F /&

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 39. Uk iE — RE BT S 4 B (4) -
The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired is FTEE S R EMERREBZ AFES
HK$259,000. None of these receivables had been impaired 259,00078 7T ° B4 I 55 FE W 2B WO (B
and expected to be uncollectible. RIEHAm AR o
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Yantic Limited is WHEMEERARIFMELENEE - VAR
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution AEBEMmEFMS D IEMTEE RN g
of the Group’s products in the new markets and the DR B & HEE 2 TEHR IR EE R RN
anticipated future operating synergies from the combination. JE o TREAE I B MR R B I R 1S 7 ©

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

40. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 40. HEFREMBRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and AP RRN2025F3AIBEESE
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March B AR o
2025.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HFRBEE

RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
In HK$’000 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
LAFETToI7R 20245 20234 20224 20214 20204
Revenue W ek 20,841 23,550 34,645 61,128 29,866
(Loss)/profit before tax BrAT (&), S&mF  (20,367)  (74,661) 10,030 22,851 (3,025)
Total comprehensive FAZEFEX),
(expenses)/income for W4
the year (20,367)  (74,661) 10,030 21,196 (3,036)
SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREBEHE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
In HK$’000 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
AT 73R 2024 20234 20224 20214 20204
Total assets BERAE 28,486 41,025 63,860 49,779 30,756
Total liabilities BEERE (67,215)  (70,709) (32,134) (35,859)  (38,032)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BR) BEFHE (38,729) (29,684) 31,726 13,920 (7,276)
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